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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1. For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014
2. Commission identification number …19073….. 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-288-698-000
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter
FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION
5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization Metro Manila, Philippines
6. Industry Classification Code:

(SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer's principal office
th
6 Floor, Benpres Building, Meralco Avenue,
corner Exchange Road, Pasig City

Postal Code
1600

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code
(632)-631-8024 to 30
9. Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
N/A
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
Title of each Class

Common Shares
Preferred Shares

Number of shares of common
stocks outstanding
and amount of debt outstanding
552,774,934
3,600,000

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [ X ]

No [ ]

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein:
The registrant's common shares are being traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange.

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:
(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and

141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or
for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)
Yes [ X ]

No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [ X ]

No [ ]

PART I--FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements.
The unaudited interim financial statements of the registrant are incorporated herein by reference to the enclosed
document. They are prepared in compliance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by
the Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the Philippine SEC.
References to PFRS standards include the application of Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), and Philippine Interpretations of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).
Earnings per share is presented in the face of unaudited statements of income for the period ended September 30,
2014 and 2013. The accompanying notes to financial statements describe the basis of computation thereof.
The interim financial statements followed the same accounting policies and methods of computations as used in the
December 31, 2013 annual financial statements under Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
The nature and amount of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income, or cash flows that are unusual
because of their nature, size or incidents are described in Item 2, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Issuances, repurchases, and repayments of debt and equity securities are described in Item 2, Other Financial
Information.
The Parent Company’s (or “FPH”) direct and indirect subsidiaries, First Philippine Electric Corporation (“First
Philec”) and First Philec Solar Corp. (“FPSC”), initiated arbitration proceedings against SunPower Philippines Mfg.
Ltd. (“SPML”) with the International Court of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce (“ICC”). In
this arbitration, FPSC has claimed payment of sums owed by SPML, damages, and such other reliefs as the arbitral
tribunal may deem appropriate, on the basis of SPML's breaches of the Supply Agreement between FPSC and
SPML. For its part, First Philec has exercised its put option under its JV Agreement with SPML pursuant to which
SPML is required to purchase all of its shares in FPSC at the amount prescribed in the JV Agreement. SPML has
contested FPSC’s and First Philec’s claims. SPML has purportedly terminated the Supply Agreement on August 4,
2012 due to alleged breaches by FPSC. SPML has also accused First Philec of alleged breaches of the JV
Agreement, and has also sought to exercise its put option under the JV Agreement and to compel First Philec to
purchase all of SPML’s shares in FPSC. FPSC and First Philec contest these counterclaims by SPML. As of
September 30, 2014, First Philec is still awaiting for the results of the arbitration.
Also, the Parent Company’s indirect subsidiaries, First Philec Nexolon Corp. (“FPNC”) and First PV Ventures
Corp.(“First PV”) initiated joint arbitration proceedings against Nexolon Co. Ltd. with the International Court of
Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce (the “ICC”). In this arbitration, FPNC has claimed payment
of sums owed by Nexolon, damages, and such other reliefs as the arbitral tribunal may deem appropriate, on the
basis of Nexolon's breaches of the Supply Agreement. For its part, First PV has exercised its put option under its JV
Agreement with Nexolon pursuant to which Nexolon is required to purchase all of its shares in FPNC at their

acquisition cost plus interest. Nexolon has contested First PV's and FPNC's claims. Nexolon has alleged that FPNC
breached the Supply Agreement. Nexolon has further alleged that First PV breached the JV Agreement, and has also
purported to exercise its put option under the JV Agreement and to compel First PV to purchase all of Nexolon’s
shares in FPNC. FPNC and First PV contest these counterclaims by Nexolon.
On October 8, 2014, the final award has been rendered (Award) in the International Chamber of Commerce
arbitration proceedings between First PV and FPNC, as Claimants, Nexolon, as Respondent. The Award orders
Nexolon to: (a) pay damages and pre-award interest to FPNC in the amount of US$24,796,717; and (b) pay First PV
₱2,087,732,514, as payment for the put option price in consideration for First PV’s shares in FPNC. Nexolon has
until 2 November 2014 to pay these amounts and if it does not do so by this date, it will be liable for a post-Award
interest of 8% p.a. First PV and FPNC are considering the options to pursue the enforcement of the Award. Based on
reports, it appears that Nexolon is currently subject to corporate rehabilitation proceedings in Korea
On November 7, 2013, the Board of Directors (Board) of FPH approved the declaration of cash dividends of P
=1.0
per common share in favor of First Philippine Holdings Corporation’s common stockholders of record as of
November 21, 2013, payable on or before December 12, 2013.
On December 27, 2013, First Gen reported that Unit 60 of the San Lorenzo combined cycle power plant was
returned to commercial operations on December 26 following the completion on December 27 of the net
dependable capacity test conducted on the entire plant.
On February 6, 2014, the FPH Board approved the amendment of Article Seventh of FPH’s Articles of Incorporation
reducing its authorized capital stock with respect to Preferred Shares from P
=20.0 billion to P
=10.7 billion. This is to
reflect the redemption and cancellation of P
=9.3 billion Series A and B Preferred Shares in 2013. The amendment was
submitted for ratification by Stockholders at the Annual Stockholder Meeting on May 26, 2014.
On April 3, 2014, the Board approved the audited consolidated financial statements (“AFS”) for the calendar year
ended December 31, 2013.
On May 8, 2014, the Board of FPH approved the declaration of cash dividends of P
=1.0 per common share in favor of
First Philippine Holdings Corporation’s common stockholders of record as of May 23, 2014, payable on or before
June 18, 2014.
On May 26, 2014, at the meeting of the stockholders, the amendments to Article THIRD and Article SEVENTH of
the Articles of Incorporations were approved.
On the same date, the Board also approved the issuance of cumulative, non-voting, non-participating, nonconvertible and peso-denominated, preferred shares with a par value of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00) (the
“Preferred Shares”) via private placement and/or Fixed-Rate Corporate Notes of up to P7.0 billion (the “Notes”), in
one or more tranches, to finance direct investments and/or acquisitions, or indirectly through any of the subsidiaries;
and to fund other general corporate purposes. BDO Capital & Investment Corporation (“BDO Capital”) has been
appointed to act as the sole arranger. The intention is to list the Preferred Shares with the Exchange within six (6)
months.
On June 2, 2014, FPH issued P1.8 billion worth of preferred shares leaving a balance of P5.2 billion with respect to
the remaining financing.
On July 3, 2014, the BOD approved an extension of FPH’s common shares buyback program from July 2014 to July
2016. The original program was approved by the board on July 8, 2010 and was extended for another two (2) years,
or from July 2012 to July 2014. The program will not involve active and widespread solicitation from stockholders
in general. It is not expected to adversely affect the company’s current projects nor its future prospects. The program
will be executed through the open market by means of the trading facilities of the Philippine Stock Exchange and
implemented by the Chairman/CEO, the President/COO and/or the EVP/Treasurer/CFO. The program is intended to
strike a balance between enhancing the company’s capital structure and maintaining the ability to fund a future
growth and investments. Buyback transactions will be triggered if the company stock is substantially undervalued,

when there is high volatility in share prices or in any instance where a buyback should serve to improve shareholder
value. The company may still purchase up to P2.65 billion worth of shares. The board previously approved a buyback of up to P6.0 billion out of which P3.345 billion worth of shares has been purchased.
On July 6, 2014, EDC disclosed to the PSE the planned outage for its 20 MW BacMan Unit 3 starting July 7, 2014,
for approximately one month, to replace the existing turbine generator unit with a brand new one and other
opportunity maintenance works for the balance of plant.
Preparations for the planned outage commenced as early as January 29, 2013, after EDC placed an order for a
replacement generator assembly following the advice of its technical team.
On July 17, 2014, First Gen disclosed the shutdown of both power plants as a result of Typhoon Glenda. The
typhoon severely battered Batangas city, causing flooding at the site. On July 21, 2014, all four units of the Santa
Rita power plant and one of San Lorenzo’s two units resumed operations. Unit 40 of Santa Rita, which was the
subject of disclosures dated February 28, April 7, and July 4, 2014 was returned to operations after installation and
commissioning of the new replacement transformer. On July 22, 2014, both units of the San Lorenzo power plant
resumed operations.
On August 7, 2014, the Board approved an increase in the amount of the debt fund-raising from P5.2 billion to P6.0
billion. This was due to the very positive response from the funders resulting in an over subscription of
approximately 150%. The total fund-raising will thus be in the amount of P7.8 billion instead of the original P7.0
billion.
On August 11, 2014, FPH received confirmation that the Amendment to Articles III and VII of its Articles of
Incorporation relating to its principal office address and the reduction of its authorized capital stock had been
approved by the SEC.
On August 14, 2014, the company reported the completion of separate loan agreements with BDO Unibank, BDO
Private Bank; Bank of Commerce, Development Bank of the Philippines, Land Bank of the Philippines, United
Coconut Planters Bank, Robinsons Bank and Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation for the total amount of ₱6.0
billion. BDO Capital & Investment Corporation acted as Sole Arranger.
On September 04, 2014, the BOD of FPH approved the participation of FPH, through a consortium, in the bidding
for the Bulacan Bulk Water Supply Project (the “Project”). This is subject to the finalization of definitive agreements
with its potential partner(s), the conduct of due diligence and compliance with the bidding requirements, among
others.
On November 6, 2014, the Board of FPH approved the declaration of cash dividends of P
=1.0 per common share in
favor of First Philippine Holdings Corporation’s common stockholders of record as of November 21, 2014, payable
on or before December 2, 2014. The Board also approved the declaration of cash dividends of P
=13.75 per preferred
share in in favor of FPH’s preferred stockholders of record as of November 21, 2014, payable on or before
December 02, 2014.
FPH’s most recent dividend declarations are presented below:

Common Shares
Preferred Shares
Common Shares
Common Shares

Declaration Date
November 6, 2014
November 6, 2014
May 8, 2014
November 7, 2013

Record Date
November 21, 2014
November 21, 2014
May 23, 2014
November 21, 2013

Payment Date
Amount
December 2, 2014
=1.00 per share
P
December 2, 2014
=13.75 per share
P
June 18, 2014
P1.00 per share
=
December 12, 2013 P
=1.00 per share

There is no seasonality or cyclicality of interim operations during the period.
There are no changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual balance sheet date.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following management’s discussion and analysis of the FPH Group’s (the Group) financial condition
and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the accompanying unaudited consolidated
financial statements and the related notes as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and for the
periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013. This discussion includes forward-looking statements, which
may include statements regarding future results of operations, financial condition or business prospects,
which are subject to significant risks, uncertainties and other factors and are based on the Group’s current
expectations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control and are difficult to predict. These statements
involve risks and uncertainties and our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Consolidated Statements of Income (Results of Operations)
For the period ended September 30, 2014 vs. September 30, 2013
Revenues
The Group’s consolidated revenues for the period ended September 30, 2014 increased by ₱6.7 billion or
10% (from ₱67.9 billion to ₱74.6 billion) mainly due to the following:


Increase in sale of electricity primarily attributable to the start of operations of Energy Development
Corporation’s (EDC) Bacman Geothermal, Inc. (BGI or Bacman) and Nasulo plants as well strong
performance of the Mindanao plant during the current period;



Increase in sale of real estate from higher condominium and industrial land sale from Rockwell Land
Corporation (Rockwell) and First Philippine Industrial Park, Inc. (FPIP), respectively; and



Increase in revenue from contracts and services mainly due from First Balfour, Inc.’s (FBI) greater
value of completion on construction projects.

Net Income
Consolidated net income increased by ₱4.6 billion (from ₱7.8 billion to ₱12.4 billion) primarily due to
higher margins from the sale of electricity (₱3.7 billion), reversal of impairment losses on Northern Negros
Geothermal Power Plant (NNGP) (₱2.1 billion), lower foreign exchange losses (₱832 million), and
proceeds from insurance claims (₱511 million) recorded under other income. The growth in profits were
partially offset by higher general and administrative expenses (₱2.0 billion) and finance costs (₱1.1 billion).
Detailed discussions of the changes in the Consolidated Statements of Income are presented in the
succeeding sections of this report.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of September 30, 2014 vs. December 31, 2013
Assets
Total assets of the Group increased by ₱26.9 billion or 9% (from ₱291.3 to ₱318.2) as a result of the
following:


Property, plant and equipment increased by ₱16.5 billion or 17% (from ₱96.2 billion to ₱112.7 billion)
from the recognition of capitalized assets of Burgos, San Gabriel and Avion power plants, which are
currently under construction.



Other noncurrent assets increased by ₱3.6 billion or 33% (from ₱10.8 billion to ₱14.4 billion) because
of capitalized Operations and Maintenance (O&M) charges pertaining to the estimated cost of turbine
blades and vanes for First Gen’s gas plants that are expected to be replaced on the next scheduled
major maintenance outage.



Cash and cash equivalents increased by ₱3.0 billion or 6% (from ₱52.8 billion to ₱55.8 billion) mainly
representing the proceeds of the loan drawn by First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPH or the
Parent) during the third quarter of the current year.



Trade and other receivables increased by ₱2.5 billion or 9% (from ₱26.6 billion to ₱29.1 billion)
following higher revenues from sale of electricity and merchandise.

Liabilities and Equity
Total liabilities increased by ₱15.3 billion or 8% (from ₱186.7 billion to 202.0 billion) primarily due to the
Group’s loan availments during the year, which includes (a) FPH’s ₱6.0 billion fixed rates notes, (b) EDC’s
US$90.0 million bridge financing, (c) First Gen Corporation’s (FGEN) US$70.7 million export credit
facility, and (d) ThermaPrime Well Services, Inc.’s (TPWSI or Thermaprime) ₱1.3 billion term-loan . The
proceeds from loan availments were primarily used to fund the Group’s Burgos, San Gabriel, and Avion
projects as well as to cover other financing requirements.
Total equity increased by ₱11.5 billion or 11% (from ₱104.7 billion to ₱116.2 billion). The increase was
mainly attributable to the issuance of the preferred stock in June 2014 amounting to ₱1.8 billion (₱100 par,
₱500 issued price, 3,600,000 shares), translation gains arising from the foreign exchange movements and
net income for the current period.

DETAILED ANALYSIS OF MATERIAL CHANGES
Consolidated Statements of Income (Results of Operations)
For the period ended September 30, 2014 vs. September 30, 2013
YTD (Unaudited) Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
(Php in millions)
REVENUE
Sale of electricity
Sale of real estate
Contracts and services
Sale of merchandise
Equity in net earnings (losses) of associates

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sale of electricity
Cost of sale of real estate
Cost of contracts and services
Cost of sale of merchandise
General and administrative expenses

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Finance costs
Finance income
Foreign exchange loss
Other income - net

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
Current
Deferred

NET INCOME
Attributable To
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

Sept. 30

Sept. 30

2014

2013

Increase/(Decrease)

Amount

%

Sept. 30 Sept. 30

2014

2013

63,122
5,673
4,315
1,393
79
74,582

59,274
4,025
3,225
1,254
83
67,861

3,848
1,648
1,090
139
(4)
6,721

6%
41%
34%
11%
-4%
10%

85%
8%
6%
2%
0%
100%

87%
6%
5%
2%
0%
100%

(39,332)
(3,537)
(3,545)
(1,205)
(9,294)
(56,913)

(39,440)
(2,875)
(1,828)
(1,288)
(7,327)
(52,758)

108
(662)
(1,717)
83
(1,967)
(4,155)

0%
23%
94%
-6%
27%
8%

-53%
-5%
-5%
-2%
-12%
-76%

-58%
-4%
-3%
-2%
-11%
-78%

(6,353)
1,160
(176)
3,403
(1,966)

(5,209)
1,117
(1,013)
524
(4,581)

(1,144)
43
837
2,879
2,615

22%
4%
-83%
549%
-57%

-9%
2%
0%
5%
-3%

-8%
2%
-1%
1%
-7%

15,703

10,522

5,181

49%

21%

16%

(3,196)
(141)
(3,337)

(2,614)
(128)
(2,742)

22%
10%
22%

-4%
0%
-4%

-4%
0%
-4%

(582)
(13)
(595)

12,365

7,780

4,585

59%

17%

11%

4,738
7,628
12,366

3,474
4,306
7,780

1,264
3,322
4,586

36%
77%
59%

6%
10%
17%

5%
6%
11%

Revenues
Consolidated revenues increased by ₱6.7 billion or 10% (from ₱67.9 billion to ₱74.6 billion) as all of the
Group’s businesses registered higher sales compared to the previous period. Details of each revenue line
item and significant changes for the comparative periods are discussed as follows:
Sale of electricity – increased by ₱3.8 billion or 6% (from ₱59.3 billion to ₱63.1 billion) and accounted for
85% of present period total revenues compared to 87% in the previous year. EDC has been the main driver
for the strong sale of electricity with ₱2.1 billion revenues generated by BGI despite outages experienced
during the third quarter of 2014 due to damages brought about by Typhoon Glenda. The 55MW Unit 1 and
20MW Unit 3 plants of BGI went into commercial operation starting January 2014 and October 2013,
respectively. EDC Parent revenues were also up ₱1.0 billion on the back of strong performance by its
Mindanao plants for the current period and the start of operations of Nasulo plant in September 2014. First
Gen’s San Lorenzo plant also registered revenues higher by US$43 million compared to last year as a result
of the 250MW Unit 60’s nine-month operation following its commissioning in December 2013 after the
May 2013 fire incident that rendered such offline. The noted increase were offset by lower revenues from
(a) First Gen’s Santa Rita plant due to the 250MW Unit 40’s transformer that was damaged in February
2014 and was put back into operation in July 2014, and (b) FG Hydro plant because of low water levels that
reduced generation of electricity and the US$5.6 million revenue adjustment resulting from re-computation
of spot prices ordered by the Energy Regulatory Commission in March 2014.
Sale of real estate – went up by ₱1.6 billion or 41% (from ₱4.0 billion to ₱5.6 billion) and accounted for
8% of present period total revenues compared to 6% the previous year. The favorable results were
attributable to higher construction completion of Rockwell Land Corporation’s (Rockwell) The Grove
Phases 2 and 3, and new projects such as Alvendia and 53 Benitez, which started its revenue recognition on
August 2013 and February 2014, respectively. First Philippine Industrial Park, Inc.’s (FPIP) higher
industrial land sale further contributed to the increase as it sold 15.5 hectares this year compared to 5.1
hectares last year.
Contracts and services – is higher by ₱1.1 billion or 34% (from ₱3.2 billion to 4.3 billion) and accounted
for 6% for present period revenues compared to 5% the previous year. The increase in revenues resulted
from higher value of completion on the construction contracts of First Balfour, Inc. (FBI) during the 2014.
Sale of merchandise – increased by ₱139 million or 11% (from ₱1.3 billion to ₱1.4 billion) and accounted
for 2% of total revenues for the current and previous period. Higher volume of electrical transformers sold
by the First Philec group during the current year has driven the increase in revenues.
While sale of electricity remain to be the main source of revenues for the Group at 85%, the sale of
electricity decreased by 2% from last year’s 87% following the strong performance of real estate and
construction businesses that both increased their respective share in total revenues by 1% for the present
period.

Costs and expenses
Consolidated cost and expenses increased by ₱4.2 billion or 8% (from ₱52.7 billion to ₱56.9 billion) and
accounted for 76% and 78% of total revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Details of cost and expenses
line items as well as significant changes for the comparative periods are discussed as follows:
Cost of sale of electricity – slightly decreased by ₱108 million or 0.3% (from ₱39.4 billion to ₱39.3 billion)
and accounted for 53% and 58% of revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Costs remained relatively flat
for the comparative periods despite the increase in revenues from sale of electricity mainly due to First Gen
gas plants’ capacity upgrades that yielded lower plant running cost as well as lower operations and
maintenance costs, and lower fuel expenses incurred during the current period. These reductions have
offset the increase in variable plant operating expenses following higher sale of electricity.

Cost of real estate sold – increased by ₱662 million or 23% (from ₱2.9 billion to ₱3.5 billion) and
accounted for 5% and 4% of total revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase was mainly
driven by higher condominium units and industrial land sold for the current period.
Cost of contracts and services – is higher by ₱1.7 billion or 94% (from ₱1.8 billion to ₱3.5 billion) and
accounted for 5% and 3% of total revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase reflects the costs
pertaining to higher value of construction contract completion for the current period plus higher operating
costs posted by First Philippine Industrial Corporation (FPIC) related to their asset preservation obligations.
Cost of merchandise sold – decreased by ₱83 million or 6% (from ₱1.3 billion to ₱1.2 billion) and
accounted for 2% of total revenues for both periods. Cost of merchandise sold mostly comprise of
transformer manufacturing costs that has been brought down by lower direct materials, labor and overhead
charges for the current period. The decrease in manufacturing cost of merchandise sold for the present year
had offset the increase in variable expenses related higher transformer sales volume.
General and administrative expenses – increased by ₱2.0 billion or 27% (from ₱7.3 billion to ₱9.3 billion)
and accounted for 12% and 11% of total revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase mainly
represents EDC and FGPC’s one-time payment of deficiency income taxes as well as higher insurance
premium charges and professional fees during the current period. Non-capitalizable expenses related to the
Group’s growth projects also contributed to the increase in general and administrative expenses.
In relation to total revenues recognized for the comparative periods, cost and expenses decreased by 2%
(from 78% to 76%) for 2014 largely because of the cost of sale of electricity that remained flat during the
period. Cost of sale of electricity as a component of cost and expenses decreased by 5% (from 58% to
53%) while the cost of real estate sold, cost of contracts and services, and general and administrative
expenses increased by 1% to 2% on the current year.

Finance costs
Finance cost increased by ₱1.1 billion or 22% (from ₱5.2 billion to ₱6.3 billion) and accounted for 9% and
8% of revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Higher finance cost resulted from the following major
loans obtained during the intervening period:
Borrower
First Gen
Rockwell
Rockwell
EDC
EDC
EDC
FPH
FNPC*
ThermaPrime

Facility
Fixed-rate bond
Corporate notes
Bond issuance
Fixed-rate bond
Term-loan
Bridge financing
Fixed-rate notes
Export credit facility
Term-loan

Date
October 2013
May to Aug. 2013
November 2013
May 2013
December 2013
July 2014
August 2014
July to Sept. 2014
Aug. to Sept. 2014

Amount Drawn
US$
₱
₱
₱
US$
US$
₱
US$
₱

300.0
3.0
5.0
7.0
80.0
90.0
6.0
70.7
1.3

million
billion
billion
billion
million
million
billion
million
billion

* - First NatGas Power Corporation, the project company of San Gabriel plant.

This was partially offset by scheduled principal payments on the existing loans of First Gen, FGPC, FGP,
FG Hydro, EDC, and Red Vulcan.

Finance income
Finance income increased by ₱43 million or 4% (from ₱1.1 billion to ₱1.2 billion) and accounted for 2% of
total revenues for both periods. The movement is mainly due to higher interest income accretion arising
from Proscenium, The Grove Phases 2 and 3, 53 Benitez, Alvendia and 32 Sanson projects of Rockwell.
This was tempered by decline in finance income on short term placement of First Gen and the Parent
following lower average cash balances during the current year.
Foreign exchange loss
The account registered losses lower by ₱837 million or 83% (from losses of ₱1.0 billion to ₱176 million)
and accounted for 0.2% and 1% of revenues in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Bulk of the foreign exchange
losses pertain to the restatement of the Group’s foreign currency denominated loans, which had less impact
during the current period due to minimal depreciation of the Philippine Peso vs. US Dollar (from
₱44.40:$1.00 as of end-2013 to ₱44.88:$1.00 as of September 30, 2014) comparted to last year (from
₱41.05:$1.00 as of end-2012 to ₱43.54:$1.00 as of September 30, 2013).

Other income - net
Other income significantly increased by ₱2.8 billion (from ₱524 million to ₱3.4 billion) and accounted for
5% and 1% of total revenues for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The significant change has been brought
about by the ₱2.1 billion recovery of impairment losses recognized by EDC on NNGP for the present year.
In September 2014, EDC switched on the 49.4MW Nasulo geothermal power plant (Nasulo) in Negros
Occidental using the same asset from NNGP that was impaired in 2010 and 2011. Accordingly, the
corresponding amount of impairment losses that will be recovered by the operation of Nasulo has been
reversed during the current period.
In addition, proceeds from insurance claims of EDC and FGP amounting to ₱379 million and $3 million,
respectively, was also booked under other income for 2014. EDC booked insurance claims mainly relating
to damage sustained by the Leyte plants due to Super Typhoon Yolanda, while FGP booked insurance
claims relating to the fire incident that damaged San Lorenzo’s Unit 60 main transformer.
Income before income tax
As a result of the foregoing, income before income tax for the period increased by ₱5.2 billion or 49%
(from ₱10.5 billion to ₱15.7 billion) for the period ended September 30, 2014 compared to last year.
Income before income tax as a percentage of total revenues increased by 5% (from 16% to 21%) primarily
because of higher revenue margins and lower other expenses.
Provision for (benefit from) income tax
Provision for income tax increased by ₱595 million or 22% (from ₱2.7 billion to ₱3.3 billion) and
accounted for 4% of revenues for both years. The movement in provision for income tax pertains to the
increase in taxable income for the current period.

Net income
Net income increased by ₱4.6 billion or 59% (from ₱7.8 billion to ₱12.4 billion) mainly due to the
favorable results of operations of the Group’s energy and real estate businesses complemented the recovery
of impairment losses and proceeds from insurance booked as other income as well as lower foreign
exchange losses for the current year. Net income as percentage of total revenues increased by 6% (from
11% to 17%) mainly due to greater revenue margins and lower other expenses compared to last year.
Net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent increased by ₱1.2 billion or 36% (from ₱3.5 billion
to ₱4.7 billion) resultant to the increase in consolidated income for the period.
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest increased by ₱3.3 billion or 77% (from ₱4.3 million to
₱7.6 million) following the increase in consolidated income for the period.
Earnings per share (EPS) for net income attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Basic EPS for the current period is ₱8.572 while diluted EPS is ₱8.558. Last year’s basic EPS and diluted
EPS were ₱6.125 and ₱6.091, respectively. The increase was due to the higher net income available to
common shareholders this period compared to the previous period.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the period ended September 30, 2014 vs. September 30, 2013
YTD (Unaudited) Horizontal Analysis
(Php in millions)

Sept. 30 Sept. 30 Increase/(Decrease)
2014
2013 Amount
%

NET INCOME

12,366

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Unrealized gains on investment in equity securities
122
Net gains (losses) on cash flow hedge deferred in equity -net of tax140
Exchange gains (losses) on foreign currency translation
44
306
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit asset/liability
-

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Attributable To
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

7,780

4,586

1,130
574
(4,053)
(2,349)

(1,008)
(434)
4,097
2,655

(620)

59%

-89%
-76%
-101%
-266%

620

-100%

12,672

4,811

7,861

163%

6,159
6,513
12,672

2,061
2,750
4,811

4,098
3,763
7,861

199%
137%
163%

Total comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive income significantly increased by ₱7.9 billion (from ₱4.8 billion to ₱12.7 billion).
The major movements in the comprehensive income of the Group were as follows:
(1) Net income went up by ₱4.6 billion or 59% (from ₱7.8 billion to ₱12.4 billion) primarily due to
the increase in revenues from sale of electricity and real estate complemented by the recovery of
impairment losses and proceeds from insurance booked as well as lower foreign exchange losses
for the current year;
(2) Exchange gains (losses) on foreign currency translation had a reversal of ₱4.1 billion (from ₱4.1
billion loss to ₱44 million gain) due to favorable foreign exchange rates at the end of the current
period for the translation of First Gen’s U.S. dollar-denominated financial statements into
Philippine peso for consolidation purposes.
(3) Unrealized gains on investment in equity securities, which pertains to the movements in fair value
of Meralco shares held by the Group, decreased by ₱1.0 billion or 89% (from ₱1.1 billion to ₱122
million). This is attributable to the net mark-to-market losses on the valuation of the said
remaining shares during the intervening period (from ₱251.0 per share as of end-2013 to ₱253.8
per share as of September 30, 2014 as against ₱260.6 per share as of end-2012 to ₱286.0 per share
as of September 30, 2013).
(4) Net movement on cash flow hedge deferred in equity decreased by ₱434 million or 76% (from
₱574 million to ₱140 million) due to the changes in mark-to-market valuation of First Gen’s
FGPC and FGP’s derivative instruments, particularly its interest rate swap agreements for its
Covered and Uncovered facilities; and
(5) There was no actuarial gain on retirement benefit asset/ liability recorded for the current year
compared to ₱620 million during last year.
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity holders of the Parent significantly increased by ₱4.1
billion (from ₱2.1 billion to ₱6.2 billion) due to higher comprehensive income for the present year.
Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to non-controlling interests
Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controlling interests significantly increased by ₱3.8
billion (from ₱2.8 billion to ₱6.5 billion) following higher comprehensive income for this year.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of September 30, 2014 vs. December 31, 2013
As of (Unaudited) Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
(Php in millions)

Sept. 30

Sept. 30

2014

2013

AS S ETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

55,788
2,721
29,133
13,674
6,995
108,311

52,755
2,675
26,610
13,405
6,109
101,554

3,033
46
2,523
269
886
6,757

6%
2%
9%
2%
15%
7%

18%
1%
9%
4%
2%
34%

18%
1%
9%
5%
2%
35%

Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates
Investments in equity and debt securities
Investment in a joint venture
Property, plant and equipment - net
Investment properties - net
Goodwill and intangible assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Other noncurrent assets - net
Total Noncurrent Assets

45
11,991
2,844
112,747
12,168
53,803
1,917
14,401
209,916

52
11,912
2,774
96,236
11,573
54,338
2,126
10,788
189,799

(7)
79
70
16,511
595
(535)
(209)
3,613
20,117

-13%
1%
3%
17%
5%
-1%
-10%
33%
11%

0%
4%
1%
35%
4%
17%
1%
5%
66%

0%
4%
1%
33%
4%
19%
1%
4%
65%

TOTAL AS S ETS

318,227

291,353

26,874

9%

100%

100%

30,891
929
517
16,532
48,869

28,630
3,784
217
7,388
40,019

2,261
(2,855)
300
9,144
8,850

8%
-75%
138%
124%
22%

10%
0%
0%
5%
15%

10%
1%
0%
3%
14%

140,771
1,304
2,886
3,389
1,406
3,356
153,112
201,981

136,497
1,535
2,770
3,091
1,316
1,451
146,660
186,679

4,274
(231)
116
298
90
1,905
6,452
15,302

3%
-15%
4%
10%
7%
131%
4%
8%

44%
0%
1%
1%
0%
1%
48%
63%

47%
1%
1%
1%
0%
0%
50%
64%

6,080

2
360
1,436
124
1,204
(54)
4,185
-

0%
100%
36%
0%
4%
-31%
0%
9%
0%

2%
0%
2%
-1%
1%
-1%
-4%
0%
17%
6%

2%
0%
1%
-1%
1%
-1%
-4%
0%
17%
7%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities
Loans payable
Income tax payable
Current portion of long-term debts
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion
Derivative liabilities - net of current portion
Deferred tax liabilities - net
Retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability
Asset retirement and preservation obligations
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Common stock
Preferred stock
Capital in excess of par value
Treasury stock
Unrealized fair value gains on investment in equity securities
Cumulative translation adjustments
Equity reserve
Retained earnings
Unappropriated
Appropriated

Increase/(Decrease) Sept. 30 Sept. 30

Amount

%

2014

2013

6,082
360
5,449
(3,345)
3,240
(2,675)
(12,591)

4,013
(3,345)
3,116
(3,879)
(12,537)

53,028
19,003

48,843
19,003

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests
Total Equity

68,551
47,695
116,246

61,294
43,380
104,674

7,257
4,315
11,572

12%
10%
11%

22%
15%
37%

21%
15%
36%

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

318,227

291,353

26,874

9%

100%

100%

Financial Condition
As of September 30, 2014, the Group’s consolidated assets totaled ₱318.2 billion, higher by ₱26.9 billion
or 9% compared to the December 31, 2013 consolidated balance of ₱291.4 billion. Material changes in
asset accounts are discussed as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents – increased by ₱3.0 billion or 6% (from ₱52.8 billion to ₱55.8 billion) and
accounted for 18% of total assets for both periods. The increase is attributable to the Parent’s increase in
cash and cash equivalent at the end of the current period representing the proceeds from the loans obtained
in August 2014. This was partly offset by the decrease in cash balance of First Gen and EDC following
disbursements for the San Gabriel and Burgos power projects, respectively.
Short-term investments – increased by ₱46 million or 2% (from ₱2.68 billion to ₱2.72billion) and
accounted for 1% of total assets for both years. The slight increase pertains to additional cash placements
with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year.
Trade and other receivables – increased by ₱2.5 billion or 9% (from ₱26.6 billion to ₱29.1 billion) and
accounted for 9% of total assets for both years. The upward movement in receivables is attributed to higher
revenues reported for the period ending September 30, 2014.
Inventories – increased by ₱269 million or 2% (from ₱13.4 billion to ₱13.7 billion) and accounted for 4%
and 5% of total assets for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Rockwell’s higher land and development cost as
well as First Philec’s greater level of production inventory influenced the increase in inventory balance.
This was partially offset by the consumption of liquid fuel of First Gen’s gas plants during the Malampaya
gas curtailments that occurred during the current year.
Other current assets – increased by ₱886 million or 15% (from ₱6.1 billion to 7.0 billion) and accounted
for 2% of total assets for both periods. Rockwell’s higher prepaid sales and marketing costs for Procenium
and 32 Sanson projects have caused the increase in other current assets.
Investments in associates – decreased by ₱7 million or 13% (from ₱52 million to ₱45 million) mainly due
to the dividend received from MHE Demag during 2014.
Investments in equity and debt securities – increased by ₱79 million or 1% (from ₱11.9 billion to ₱12.0
billion) and accounted for 4% of total assets for both years. The change was driven by the unrealized fair
value gains on the remaining 44,475,706 shares of Meralco held by the Parent Company and FPUC.
Investment in a joint venture – increased by ₱70 million or 3% (from ₱2.7 million to ₱2.8 million) and
accounted for 1% of total assets for both periods. The movement pertains to Rockwell’s recognition of
additional assets for the Rockwell Business Center Tower 3, which was under construction at the end of the
present period.
Property, plant and equipment – increased by ₱16.5 billion or 17% (from ₱96.2 billion to 112.7 billion)
and accounted for 35% and 33% of total assets for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase is mainly due
to the Burgos, San Gabriel and Avion power plants that are presently under construction as well as the
recovery on impairment booked for NNGP and capitalized repairs on the Unified Leyte plant. These
additions to property, plant and equipment has been offset by depreciation recognized during the period.
Investment properties – increased by ₱595 million or 5% (from ₱11.6 billion to ₱12.2 billion) and
accounted for 4% of total assets for both years. The increase is primarily due to Rockwell Land’s additional
construction costs of Lopez Tower and the Grove Service Apartments as well as FPIP’s increase in
industrial properties during the period.

Goodwill and intangible – decreased by ₱535 million or 1% (from 54.3 billion to ₱53.8 billion) and
accounted for 17% and 19% of total assets for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease has been brought
about by the amortization and translation of First Gen’s U.S. dollar-denominated financial statements into
Philippine Peso.
Deferred tax assets–net – decreased by ₱209 million or 10% (from ₱2.1 billion to ₱1.9 billion) and
accounted for 1% of total assets for both periods. The decline in balance is primarily due to lower deferred
income taxes recognized by EDC for the present period following the reversal of impairment on NNGP.
Other noncurrent assets – increased by ₱3.6 billion or 33% (from ₱10.8 billion to ₱14.4 billion) and
accounted for 5% and 4% of total assets for 2014 and 2013, respectively. This is because of FGPC and
FGP’s capitalized O&M charges during the period to cover the estimated cost of turbine blades and vanes
that are expected to be replaced in the next scheduled major maintenance outage, as well as the increase in
EDC’s tax credit certificates and input VAT for the period.
As a percentage of total assets, property, plant and equipment increased by 2% (from 33% to 35%) mainly
due to power plants under construction while goodwill and intangible assets decreased by 2% (from 19% to
17%) from the restatement of foreign currency denominated balances. The other accounts, as discussed
above, have maintained their proportion to total assets for the comparative periods.
As of September 30, 2014, the Group’s consolidated liabilities and equity totaled ₱318.2 billion, higher by
₱26.9 billion or 9% compared to the December 31, 2013 consolidated balance of ₱291.4 billion. Material
changes in liability and equity accounts are discussed as follows:
Trade payables and other current liabilities – increased by ₱2.3 billion or 8% (from ₱28.6 billion to ₱30.1
billion) and accounted for 10% of total liabilities and equity for both periods. The increase was driven by
higher trade payables of FBI and Rockwell mostly related to construction progress billings. This was
tempered by First Gen’ decrease in payables on account of FGPC’s full payment of the liquid fuel that was
purchased in September 2013 as well as the lower payables of EDC.
Loans payable – decreased by ₱2.9 billion or 75% (from ₱3.8 billion to ₱929 million) and accounted for
0.3% and 1% of total liabilities and equity for 2014 and 2013, respectively. This was mostly due to the
settlement of loans availed by FGP and FGPC for the importation of liquid fuel which was consumed
during the scheduled 30-day Malampaya outage in November and December 2013.
Income tax payable – increased by ₱300 million or 138% (from ₱217 million to ₱517 million) following
the increase in taxable income of the Group for the 3rd Quarter of 2014 compared to the 4th Quarter of 2013.
Long-term debt, including current portion – increased by ₱13.4 billion or 9% (from ₱143.9 billion to
₱157.3 billion) and accounted for 49% of liabilities and equity for both years. The higher balance of longterm debt reflects the following significant borrowing transactions for 2014:
Borrower
EDC
FPH
FNPC*
Thermaprime

Facility
Bridge financing
Fixed-rate notes
Export credit facility
Term-loan

Date
July 2014
August 2014
July to Sept. 2014
Aug. to Sept 2014

Amount Drawn
US$
₱
US$
₱

90.0
6.0
70.7
1.3

million
billion
million
billion

* - First NatGas Power Corporation, the project company of San Gabriel plant.
Current portion of long-term debt increased by ₱9.1 billion or 124% (from ₱7.4 billion to ₱16.5 billion)
primarily due to reclassification EDC’s P8.5 billion Peso Public Bond that will mature on June 4, 2015.

Retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability – increased by ₱298 million or 10% (from ₱3.1
billion to ₱3.4 billion) and accounted for 1% of total liabilities and equity for both years. The increase
pertains to the recognition of expense on retirement and other long-term employee benefits for the current
year.
Asset retirement and preservation obligations – increased by ₱90 million or 7% (from ₱1.3 billion to ₱1.4
billion) on account of additional provision made by FPIC and First Gen.
Other noncurrent liabilities – increased by ₱1.9 billion or 131% (from ₱1.5 billion to ₱3.4 billion) mainly
due to higher period-end balances of noncurrent customer deposits from Rockwell and First Philec.
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent – increased by ₱7.3 billion or 12% (from ₱61.3
billion to ₱68.6 billion) and accounted for 22% and 21% of total liabilities and equity for 2014 and 2013.
The following major items brought about the net increase in equity attributable to equity holders of the
Parent:
(1) Preferred stock, including capital in excess of par value, increased by ₱1.8 billion or 45% (from
₱4.0 billion to ₱5.8 billion) due to the Parent’s issuance of cumulative, non-voting, and nonparticipating preferred stock in June 2014 (₱100 par, ₱500 issued price, 3,600,000 shares);
(2) Unrealized fair value gains on investment in equity securities increased by ₱124 million or 4%
(from ₱3.1 billion to ₱3.2 billion), due to the revaluation of the remaining Meralco shares held by
the Group;
(3) Cumulative translation adjustments decreased by ₱1.2 billion or 31% (from ₱3.9 billion to ₱2.7
billion) due to translation gains arising from the foreign exchange movements during the period;
and
(4) Unappropriated retained earnings increased by ₱4.2 billion or 9% (from ₱48.8 billion to ₱53.0
billion) due to the net income offset by dividends declared for the current period.
Non-controlling interests – increased by ₱4.3 billion or 10% (from ₱43.4 billion to ₱47.4 billion) and
accounted for 15% of total liabilities and equity for both years. Non-controlling interests represent the
portion of net assets not held by the Group. This includes, among others, the equity interests in First Gen
and subsidiaries, Rockwell Land, FPIC, FPHC Realty and FPIP and subsidiaries not held by the Group.
The increase was mainly due to non-controlling interests’ share in the Group’s net earnings attributable to
the non-controlling interests and other comprehensive income tempered by the dividends declared.
Liabilities and equity accounts, as a percentage of the total, generally stayed the same for comparative
periods.

* * * * *

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The following are the key performance indicators of the Group:

September 30
Performance Indicator

2014

2013

6.50%

4.60%

Interest coverage ratio

3.47

3.02

Dilluted earnings per share

P8.56

P6.09

Return on average stockholders' equity

Return on average equity increased from 4.6% in 2013 to 6.5% this year as the net income attributable to Parent went
up by ₱1.3 billion or 36% (from ₱3.5 billion to ₱4.7 billion).
Interest coverage ratio increased from 3.02:1.00 in 2013 to 3.47:1.00 this year despite the ₱1.1 billion or 22%
increase in interest expense (from ₱5.2 billion to ₱6.3 billion) mainly due to the increase in the earnings before
interest and taxes by ₱5.2 billion or 49% (from ₱10.5 billion to ₱15.7 billion).
Earnings per common share (diluted) increased from P6.09 to P8.56 as the increase in net income resulted into higher
net earnings available to common shareholders for the current year.

September 30
2014

December 31
2013

Assets to total equity ratio*

4.16

4.14

Long-term debt (net) to total equity ratio*

1.84

1.94

Current ratio

2.22

2.54

Quick ratio

1.79

2.05

P135.06

P127.42

Performance Indicator

Book value per common share*

The ratio of total Assets to total equity slightly increased from 4.14:1.00 in 2013 to 4.16:1.00 this year. The ₱26.9
billion or 9% growth in total assets (from ₱291.4 billion to ₱318.2 billion) primarily from the construction of power
plants during the year has been matched with a proportionate increase in equity during the same period.
The ratio of long-term debt (excluding current portion) to total equity decreased from 1.94:1.00 in 2013 to 1.84:1.00
in 2014. This was mainly due to the reclassification of ₱8.5 billion Peso Public Bond that will mature within one year
as current portion of long-term debt and an increase in total equity higher than the increase in long-term debt
(excluding current portion) mainly because of greater earnings for 2014.
Current ratio and Quick ratio showed a downward movement from 2.54:1.00 in 2013 to 2.22:1.00 and 2.05:1.00 in
2013 to 1.79:1.00 this year, respectively, primarily due to higher current liabilities as of period end.
Book value per common share grew from P127.42 in 2013 to P135.06 this year. The increase was brought about by
the ₱7.3 billion or 12% increase (from ₱61.3 billion to ₱68.6 billion) in equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent for the current period.

Performance Indicator

Formula

Return on Average Stockholders’ Equity
Reflects how much the firm has earned on the funds
invested by the shareholders

Net Income
Average Equity*

Interest Coverage Ratio
Indicator of company’s ability to meet its interest
obligations

Earnings before interest &
taxes
Interest Expense

Earnings Per Share
The portion of company’s profit allocated to each
outstanding share of common stock

Net Income
Weighted Average Number
of Shares Outstanding

Assets to Equity Ratio
Measures the company’s financial leverage and expresses
the relationship between the total assets and the total
capital contributed by the owners

Total Assets
Equity*

Long-term Debt to Equity Ratio
Measures the company’s financial leverage excluding
current portion

Long-term Debt**
Equity**

Current Ratio
Indicator of company’s ability to pay short-term
obligations

Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Quick Ratio
Indicator of company’s ability to pay short-term
obligations with its most liquid assets (cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and trade and other
receivables)

Current assets (excluding
inventories and others)
Current Liabilities

Book Value Per Share
Measure used by owners of common shares in a firm to
determine the level of safety associated with each
individual share after all debts are paid

Equity*
Number of Shares
Outstanding at Period End

* - Equity pertains to equity attributable to equity holders of the parent and excludes
cumulative translation adjustments, share in other comprehensive income, effect of
equity transaction of subsidiaries and excess of acquisition cost over carrying value of
minority interest.
**- Excluding current portion but including bonds payable

The following are key performance indicators of First Gen group (consolidated):

September 30
2014

December 31
2013

Current ratio

1.89x

2.46x

Asset-to-equity ratio

2.69x

2.84x

Debt-to-equity ratio

1.69x

1.84x

Quick ratio

1.67x

2.16x

Return on assets (%)

7.26%

3.48%

Return on equity (%)

20.02%

9.44%

1.42x

1.54x

Performance Indicator

Interest-bearing debt-to-equity ratio (times)

Key Performance Indicator/ Description
Current Ratio
Calculated by dividing current assets over current liabilities. This ratio measures the
company's ability to pay short-term obligations.
Asset-to-equity ratio (times)
Calculated by dividing total assets over total equity.
Debt-to-equity ratio (times)
Calculated by dividing total liabilities over total equity. This ratio expresses the
relationship between capital contributed by the creditors and the owners.
Quick ratio
Calculated by dividing Cash and cash equivalents plus Receivables over total current
liabilities. This ratio measures a company’s solvency.
Annualized Return on Assets
Calculated by dividing the numerator of the net income for the year times 2, by the
denominator of the average of the total assets as of the end of the year and the
beginning of the year. This ratio measures how the company utilizes its resources to
generate profits.
Annualized Return on Equity
Calculated by dividing the numerator of the net income for the period times 2, by the
denominator of the average of the total equity at the end of the year and the beginning
of the year. This ratio measures how much profit a company earned in comparison to
the amount of shareholder equity found on the balance sheet.
Interest-bearing debt-to-equity ratio (times)
Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing debt over total equity. This ratio measures
the percentage of funds provided by the lenders/creditors.

The following are EDC group’s (consolidated) key performance indicators:

September 30
2014

September 30
2013

Current Ratio

1.40:1

2.48:1

Debt-to-Equity Ratio

1.45:1

1.53:1

Net Debt-to-Equity Ratio

1.15:1

1.03:1

Return on Assets (%)

9.15

8.26

Return on Equity (%)

25.32

23.43

Solvency Ratio

0.22

0.21

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio
Asset-to-Equity Ratio

4.21
2.7

3.87
2.86

Performance Indicator

Key Performance Indicator/ Description
Current Ratio
Total current assets divided by total current liabilities. This ratio is a rough indication of a company’s ability to pay
its short-term obligations. Generally, a current ratio above 1.00 is indicative of a company’s greater capability to
settle its current obligations
Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Total interest-bearing debts divided by stockholders’ equity. This ratio expresses the relationship between capital
contributed by the creditors and the owners. The higher the ratio, the greater the risk being assumed by the creditors.
A lower ratio generally indicates greater long-term financial safety.
Net-Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Total interest-bearing debts less cash & cash equivalents divided by stockholders’ equity. This ratio measures the
company’s financial leverage and stability. A negative net debt-to-equity ratio means that the total of cash and cash
equivalents exceeds interest-bearing liabilities.
Return on Assets
Net income (annual basis) divided by total assets (average). This ratio indicates how profitable a company is relative
to its total assets. This also gives an idea as to how efficient management is at using its assets to generate earnings.
Return on Equity
Net income (annual basis) divided by total stockholders’ equity (average). This ratio reveals how much profit a
company earned in comparison to the total amount of shareholder equity found on the balance sheet. A business that
has a high return on equity is more likely to be one that is capable of internally generating cash. For the most part,
the company’s return on equity is compared with an industry average. The company is considered superior if its
return on equity is greater than the industry average.
Solvency Ratio
Net income excluding depreciation and non-cash provisions divided by total debt obligations. This ratio gauges a
company’s ability to meet its long-term obligations.
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio
Earnings before interest and taxes of one period divided by interest expense of the same period. This ratio
determines how easily a company can pay interest on outstanding debt.
Asset-to-Equity Ratio
Total assets divided by total stockholders’ equity. This ratio shows a company’s leverage, the amount of debt used
to finance the firm.

The following are Rockwell group’s (consolidated) key performance indicators:

September 30
2014

September 30
2013

Return on Assets* (%)

3.70%

5.10%

Return on Equity* (%)

10.90%

11.70%

September 30
2014

December 31
2013

Current Ratio (x)

2.86

4.13

Debt to Equity Ratio (x)

1.23

1.31

Net Debt to Equity Ratio (x)

0.64

0.52

Asset to Equity Ratio (x)

3.11

3.03

Interest Coverage Ratio (x)

3.71

8.03

Performance Indicator

Performance Indicator

Key Performance Indicator/ Description
Return on Assets
Net Income/ Average Total Assets
Return on Equity
Net Income/ Average Total Equity
Current Ratio
Current Assets/ Current Liabilities
Debt to Equity Ratio
Total Interest Bearing Debt/ Total Equity
Net Debt to Equity Ratio
(Total Interest Bearing Debts – Cash and Cash Equivalents)/ Total Equity
Asset to Equity Ratio
Total Assets/ Total Equity
Interest Coverage Ratio
EBIDTA/ Interest Payments
* Return on Assets and Return on Equity are annualized figures.

Other Financial Information
(i) Any known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the
issuer’s liquidity.
There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on
liquidity except as otherwise disclosed or discussed herein.

(ii) Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company, including
any default or acceleration of an obligation.
The registrant’s current financing arrangements include standard provisions relating to events of default. Any
breach of the loan covenants or material adverse change may result in an event of default.
(iii) All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting
period.
The company did not enter into any material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations
(including contingent obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons during
the reporting period.
(iv) Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments, and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures should be described.
There are no material commitments for capital expenditures except as otherwise disclosed or discussed herein.
(v) Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a material
impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations.
There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations except as otherwise disclosed or
discussed herein.
(vi) Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the registrant’s continuing operations.
During the period, there are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the registrant’s
continuing operations.

PART II--OTHER INFORMATION
The Company has no other information that needs to be disclosed other than disclosures made under SEC Form 17C or as discussed herein.
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First Philippine Holdings Corporation
and Subsidiaries
Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2014 and 2013
(With Comparative Audited Figures as at December 31, 2013)

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Amounts in Millions)
(Unaudited)
(Audited)
September 30 December 31
2014
2013

Increase/(Decrease)
Amount
%

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables - net
Inventories
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

P55,788
2,721
29,133
13,674
6,995
108,311

P52,755
2,675
26,610
13,405
6,109
101,554

Noncurrent Assets
Investments in associates
Investments in equity and debt securities
Investment in a joint venture
Property, plant and equipment - net
Investment properties - net
Goodwill and intangible assets
Deferred tax assets - net
Other noncurrent assets - net
Total Noncurrent Assets

P45
11,991
2,844
112,747
12,168
53,803
1,917
14,401
209,916

P52
11,912
2,774
96,236
11,573
54,338
2,126
10,788
189,799

(7) -13%
79
1%
70
3%
16,511 17%
595
5%
(535) -1%
(209) -10%
3,613 33%
20,117 11%

TOTAL ASSETS

P318,227

P291,353

P26,874

P30,891
929
517
16,532
P48,869

P28,630
3,784
217
7,388
P40,019

2,261
8%
(2,855) -75%
300 138%
9,144 124%
P8,850 22%

3,033
46
2,523
269
886
6,757

6%
2%
9%
2%
15%
7%

9%

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade payables and other current liabilities
Loans payable
Income tax payable
Current portion of long-term debts
Total Current Liabilities
(Forward)

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current portion
Derivative liabilities - net of current portion
Deferred tax liabilities - net
Retirement and other long-term employee benefits liability
Asset retirement and preservation obligations
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

P140,771
1,304
2,886
3,389
1,406
3,356
153,112
201,981

P136,497
1,535
2,770
3,091
1,316
1,451
146,660
186,679

4,274
3%
(231) -15%
116
4%
298 10%
90
7%
1,905 131%
6,452
4%
15,302
8%

P6,082
360
5,449
(3,345)
3,240
(2,675)
(12,591)

P6,080
4,013
(3,345)
3,116
(3,879)
(12,537)

53,028
19,003

48,843
19,003

2
0%
360 100%
1,436 36%
0%
124
4%
1,204 -31%
(54)
0%
4,185
9%
0%

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests
Total Equity

68,551
47,695
116,246

61,294
43,380
104,674

7,257
4,315
11,572

12%
10%
11%

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P318,227

P291,353

P26,874

9%

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Common stock
Preferred stock
Capital in excess of par value
Treasury stock
Unrealized fair value gains on investment in equity securities
Cumulative translation adjustments
Equity reserve
Retained earnings
Unappropriated
Appropriated

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Data)

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended Sept 30
2014
2013

REVENUE
Sale of electricity
Sale of real estate
Contracts and services
Equity
net earnings (losses) of associates and joint
Sale of in
merchandise
venture

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance
General and administrative expenses
Contracts and services
Real estate sold
Merchandise sold

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Finance costs
Finance income
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Other income - net
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
Current
Deferred

NET INCOME
Attributable To
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

Earnings Per Share for Net Income Attributable to
the Equity Holders of the Parent
Basic
Diluted

Increase/(Decrease)
Amount Percent (%)

P63,122
5,673
4,315
1,393
79
74,582

P59,274
4,025
3,225
1,254
83
67,861

3,848
1,648
1,090
139
(4)
6,721

6%
41%
34%
11%
-5%
10%

39,332
9,294
3,545
3,537
1,205
56,913

39,440
7,327
1,828
2,875
1,288
52,758

(108)
1,967
1,717
662
(83)
4,155

0%
27%
94%
23%
-6%
8%

(6,353)
1,160
(176)
3,403
(1,966)
15,703

(5,209)
1,117
(1,013)
524
(4,581)
10,522

(1,144)
43
837
2,879
2,615
5,181

22%
4%
83%
549%
57%
49%

3,196
141
3,337

2,614
128
2,742

582
13
595

22%
10%
22%

12,366

7,780

4,586

59%

4,738
7,628
12,366

3,474
4,306
7,780

1,264
3,322
4,586

36%
77%
59%

P8.572
8.558

P6.123
6.089

2.449
2.469

40%
41%

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Millions Except Per Share Data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Sept 30
2014
2013

REVENUE
Sale of electricity
Sale of real estate
Contracts and services
Sale of merchandise
Equity in net earnings (losses) of associates and joint venture

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance
General and administrative expenses
Contracts and services
Real estate sold
Merchandise sold

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Finance costs
Finance income
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Other income - net
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
Current
Deferred

NET INCOME
Attributable To
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

Increase/(Decrease)
Amount Percent (%)

P21,449
2,407
2,154
550
26
26,586

P18,965
1,702
1,212
669
27
22,575

2,484
705
942
(119)
(1)
4,011

13%
41%
78%
-18%
-4%
18%

13,995
3,134
1,063
1,580
637
20,409

12,760
2,540
106
1,124
639
17,169

1,235
594
957
456
(2)
3,240

10%
23%
903%
41%
0%
19%

(2,109)
430
(637)
2,588
272
6,449

(1,679)
395
(150)
239
(1,195)
4,211

(430)
35
(487)
2,349
1,467
2,238

26%
9%
-325%
983%
123%
53%

1,123
267
1,390

886
309
1,195

237
(42)
195

27%
-14%
16%

5,059

3,016

2,043

68%

2,204
2,855
5,059

1,570
1,446
3,016

634
1,409
2,043

40%
97%
68%

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts in Millions)
(Unaudited)

Balance at January 1, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income
Issuances of shares
Cash dividends
Appropriations
Effect of business combination
Redemption and cancellation or retirement
Dividends of subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Balance at September 30, 2014

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Capital in Excess

Parent Company

6,080
2
6,082

360
360

4,013
1,436
5,449

-

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Treasury Stock
Unrealized Fair
Cumulative

(3,345)
(3,345)

3,116
124
124
3,240

(3,879)
1,204
1,204
(2,675)

Equity Reserve

Unappropriated

Appropriated

Total

Non- controlling

Total Equity

(12,537)
(54)
(12,591)

48,843
4,738
4,738
(553)
53,028

19,003
19,003

61,294
4,738
1,328
6,066
1,798
(553)
(54)
68,551

43,380
7,628
(1,022)
6,606
(1,129)
(1,162)
47,695

104,674
12,366
306
12,672
1,798
(553)
(1,129)
(1,216)
116,246

(12,305)
-

61,519
3,474
(78)
3,396
-

6,955
-

(1,199)
63,716

6,955

65,457
3,474
(1,716)
1,758
91
(1,199)
(4,300)
(407)
61,400

43,772
4,306
(1,253)
3,053
-

109,229
7,780
(2,969)
4,811
91
(1,199)
(4,300)
(1,746)
(582)
106,304

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
(Unaudited)
Balance at January 1, 2013, as restated
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income
Issuances of shares
Share based payment expense
Cash dividends
Appropriations
Redemption and cancellation or retirement
Dividends of subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Balance at September 30, 2013

6,050
30
6,080

6,300
(6,300)
-

3,929
61
-

(2,000)
-

3,990

2,000
-

-

(3,345)
(3,345)

3,557
991
991
4,548

(5,203)
(2,629)
(2,629)
(7,832)

(407)
(12,712)

(1,746)
(175)
44,904

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts in Millions)
(Unaudited)

Balance at January 1, 2014
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income
Issuances of shares
Cash dividends
Appropriations
Effect of business combination
Redemption and cancellation or retirement
Dividends of subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Balance at September 30, 2014

Common Stock

Preferred Stock

Capital in Excess

Parent Company

6,080
2
6,082

360
360

4,013
1,436
5,449

-

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Treasury Stock
Unrealized Fair
Cumulative

(3,345)
(3,345)

3,116
124
124
3,240

(3,879)
1,204
1,204
(2,675)

Equity Reserve

Unappropriated

Appropriated

Total

Non- controlling

Total Equity

(12,537)
(54)
(12,591)

48,843
4,738
4,738
(553)
53,028

19,003
19,003

61,294
4,738
1,328
6,066
1,798
(553)
(54)
68,551

43,380
7,628
(1,022)
6,606
(1,129)
(1,162)
47,695

104,674
12,366
306
12,672
1,798
(553)
(1,129)
(1,216)
116,246

(12,305)
-

61,519
2,350
(1,226)
1,124
-

6,955
-

(1,752)
(12,048)
48,843

12,048
19,003

65,457
2,350
(343)
2,007
91
23
(1,752)
(4,300)
(232)
61,294

43,772
4,204
(2,057)
2,147
(2,243)
-

109,229
6,554
(2,400)
4,154
91
(2,220)
(1,752)
(4,300)
(528)
104,674

Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
(Unaudited)
Balance at January 1, 2013, as restated
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income
Issuances of shares
Share based payment expense
Cash dividends
Appropriations
Redemption and cancellation or retirement
Dividends of subsidiaries
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Balance at December 30, 2013

6,050
30
6,080

6,300
(6,300)
-

3,929
61
23
-

(2,000)
-

4,013

2,000
-

-

(3,345)
(3,345)

3,557
(441)
(441)
3,116

(5,203)
1,324
1,324
(3,879)

(232)
(12,537)

(296)
43,380

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in Millions)
(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended Sept 30
2014

NET INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Unrealized gains on investment in equity securities
Net gains (losses) on cash flow hedge deferred in equity - net of tax
Exchange gains (losses) on foreign currency translation
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit asset/liability

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Attributable To
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling Interests

P12,366

122
140
44
306

-

2013

Increase/(Decrease)
Amount Percent (%)

P7,780

4,586

1,130
574
(4,053)
(2,349)

(1,008)
(434)
4,097
2,655

(620)

59%

-89%
-76%
-101%
-266%

620

-100%

P12,672

P4,811

7,861

163%

P6,159
6,513
P12,672

P2,061
2,750
P4,811

4,098
3,763
P7,861

199%
137%
163%

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in Millions)
(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended Sept 30
2014
2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization
Finance income
Recovery of impairment loss
Retirement benefit expense
Equity in net earnings of associates and a joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) - net
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in:
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Decrease in trade payable and other current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Income tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

P15,703
6,353
5,748
(1,160)
(2,040)
298
(79)
825
25,648

5,209
6,027
(1,117)
(83)
1,013
21,571

(1,212)
(269)
(833)
1,855
25,189
368
(2,398)
23,159

3,960
(3,959)
(1,202)
719
21,089
237
(2,269)
19,057

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Property, plant and equipment and investment properties
(21,958)
Exploration and evaluation assets and intangible assets
(397)
Increase in:
Short-term investments
(46)
Available-for-sale financial assets
(507)
Other noncurrent assets
(2,954)
Dividends received from an associate
41
Proceeds from sale and incidental income from testing property, plant and equipment
101
Net cash used in investing activities
(25,720)
(Forward)

P10,522

(7,875)
(464)
(648)
(1,776)
33
(10,730)

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended Sept 30
2014
2013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of borrowings from banks and other financial institutions
Proceeds from:
Subscriptions to and issuances of shares of capital/preferred stock
Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions
Payments of:
Interest
Cash Dividends to preferred and common shareholders
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
Dividends to non-controlling interests
Redemption of preferred shares
Redemption of Convertible Bonds
Increase (decrease) in:
Increase in other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(6,903)

(10,930)

1,798
17,535

91
22,130

(5,108)
(553)
(1,216)
(1,129)
-

(3,157)
(1,199)
(512)
(1,746)
(4,300)
(2,979)

1,194
5,618

(1,287)
(3,889)

CASH BALANCE FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

-

-

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(24)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD
See accompanying Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

(112)

3,033

4,326

52,755

37,986

P55,788

P42,312

1

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Corporate Information
First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPH or the Parent Company) is incorporated and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 30, 1961. On June 29, 2007,
the Philippine SEC approved the extension of the Company‟s corporate life for another 50 years from
June 30, 2011. Under its amended Articles of Incorporation, its principal activities consist of
investments in real and personal properties including, but not limited to, shares of stocks, notes,
securities and entities in the power generation, real estate development, manufacturing and
construction, financing and other service industries. FPH and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the “Group”. All subsidiaries, except for FGHC International Limited (FGHC International),
FPH Fund Corporation (FPH Fund), FPH Ventures Corporation (FPH Ventures), Bluespark
Management Limited (Bluespark) [formerly Lisbon Star Management Limited] and certain
subsidiaries of Energy Development Corporation (EDC), are incorporated in the Philippines. FGHC
International, FPH Fund and FPH Ventures are registered in the Cayman Islands. Bluespark is
incorporated in British Virgin Islands while certain subsidiaries of EDC are incorporated in Hong
Kong, Peru, Chile and Indonesia.
FPH is 45.99% and 46.01%-owned by Lopez Holdings Corporation (Lopez Holdings), a publiclylisted Philippine-based entity, as at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. With the adoption of
Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 10, Consolidated Financial Statements effective
January 1, 2013, Lopez, Inc. became the ultimate parent of FPH through Lopez Holdings. Majority
of Lopez Holdings is owned by Lopez, Inc., a Philippine entity and the ultimate Parent Company.
The remaining shares are held by various shareholder groups and individuals.
The common shares of FPH were listed beginning May 3, 1963 and have since been traded in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). FPH is considered a public company under Section 17.2 of the
Securities Regulation Code.
The registered office address of FPH is 6th Floor, Benpres Building, Exchange Road corner Meralco
Avenue, Pasig City.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2014 have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
34, Interim Financial Reporting. Accordingly, the unaudited consolidated financial statements do not
include all the information and disclosures required in the annual consolidated financial statements,
and should be read in conjunction with the Group‟s annual consolidated financial statements as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and investments in
quoted equity shares which are measured at fair value.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, the Parent Company‟s
functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest million peso, except when
otherwise indicated.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with PFRS, as issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the Philippine SEC.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries as at September 30, 2014.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically,
the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:




Power over an investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over the investee, including:




the contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee
rights arising from other contractual arrangements
the Group‟s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of FPH
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group‟s accounting policies.

-3-

All intra-group asset, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. Any excess or deficit of consideration paid over the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest is recognized as part of “Equity reserve” account in the equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Parent.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:








Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received
Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained
Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
Reclassifies the parent‟s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, including the
adoption of new and amended accounting standards for both 2014 and 2013.
The Group applied beginning January 1, 2013 certain standards and amendments that require
restatement of consolidated financial statements. These include PFRS 10, PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements, and PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised 2011). In addition, the application of PFRS
12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement resulted in
additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Several other amendments apply in
2014 and 2013. However, they do not have impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
The Group also early adopted PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets (Amendments). These amendments remove the unintended consequences of
PFRS 13 on the disclosures required under PAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure
of the recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs for which impairment loss has been recognized or
reversed during the period. These amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided PFRS 13 is also
applied. The Group has early adopted these amendments to PAS 36 in 2013 since the
amended/additional disclosures provide useful information. Accordingly, these amendments have
been considered while making disclosures for impairment of non-financial assets. These amendments
would continue to be considered for future disclosures.
The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment that became effective beginning
January 1, 2013 are described below.


PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments)
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These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and
related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for all
recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32, Financial
Instruments: Presentation. These disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that
are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or „similar agreement‟, irrespective of
whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32. The amendments require entities to disclose,
in a tabular format, unless another format is more appropriate, the following minimum
quantitative information. This is presented separately for financial assets and financial liabilities
recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a. The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b. The amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the
net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
c. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i. Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
e. The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.
The amendments affect disclosures only and have no impact on the Group‟s financial position or
performance.


PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
The Group adopted PFRS 10 in 2013. PFRS 10 replaced the portion of PAS 27, Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also included the issues raised in Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) 12,
Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. PFRS 10 established a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10
require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled,
and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that
were in PAS 27.



PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
PFRS 11 replaced PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC 13, Jointly-Controlled Entities Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removed the option to account for jointly
controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that meet the
definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method.



PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
PFRS 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity‟s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. The requirements in PFRS 12 are more
comprehensive than the previously existing disclosure requirements for subsidiaries (for example,
where a subsidiary is controlled with less than a majority of voting rights). While the Group has
subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests, there are no unconsolidated structured
entities.



PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement
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PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under PFRSs for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value, but rather provides
guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS. PFRS 13 defines fair value as an exit price.
PFRS 13 also requires additional disclosures. As a result of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Group
re-assessed its policies for measuring fair values, in particular, its valuation inputs such as nonperformance risk for fair value measurement of liabilities. The Group has assessed that the
application of PFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value measurements of the Group.


PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income or OCI (Amendments)
The amendments to PAS 1 introduced a grouping of items presented in OCI. Items that will be
reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon
derecognition or settlement) will be presented separately from items that will never be recycled.
The amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group‟s financial position or
performance.



PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Revised),
Amendments to PAS 19 require for defined benefit plans to recognize all
actuarial gains and losses in OCI and unvested past service costs previously recognized over the
average vesting period to be recognized immediately in profit or loss when incurred. Prior to
adoption of the Revised PAS 19, the Group recognized actuarial gains and losses as income or
expense when the net cumulative unrecognized gains and losses for each individual plan at the
end of the previous period exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of the plan assets. Upon adoption of the Revised PAS 19, the Group changed its
accounting policy to recognize all actuarial gains and losses in OCI and past service costs, if any,
in profit or loss in the period they occur.
The Revised PAS 19 replaced the interest cost and expected return on plan assets with the
concept of net interest on defined benefit liability or asset which is calculated by multiplying the
net balance sheet defined benefit liability or asset by the discount rate used to measure the
employee benefit obligation, each as at the beginning of the annual period. The Revised PAS 19
also amended the definition of short-term employee benefits and requires employee benefits to be
classified as short-term based on expected timing of settlement rather than the employee‟s
entitlement to the benefits. In addition, the Revised PAS 19 modifies the timing of recognition
for termination benefits. The modification requires the termination benefits to be recognized at
the earlier of when the offer cannot be withdrawn or when the related restructuring costs are
recognized.



PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and
PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in the separate financial
statements. The adoption of the amended PAS 27 did not have a significant impact on the
separate financial statements of the entities in the Group.



PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

-6-

As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, and PFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to investments
in joint ventures in addition to associates. The adoption of the amended PAS 28 did not have a
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group.


Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs (“stripping costs”) that are incurred in surface
mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”). If the
benefit from the stripping activity will be realized in the current period, an entity is required to
account for the stripping activity costs as part of the cost of inventory. When the benefit is the
improved access to ore, the entity should recognize these costs as a non-current asset, only if
certain criteria are met (“stripping activity asset”). The stripping activity asset is accounted for as
an addition to, or as an enhancement of, an existing asset. After initial recognition, the stripping
activity asset is carried at its cost or revalued amount less depreciation or amortization and less
impairment losses, in the same way as the existing asset of which it is a part. The new
interpretation is not relevant to the Group.



PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Government Loans
(Amendments)
The amendments to PFRS 1 require first-time adopters to apply the requirements of PAS 20,
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, prospectively to
government loans existing at the date of transition to PFRS. However, entities may choose to
apply the requirements of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
PAS 20 to government loans retrospectively if the information needed to do so had been obtained
at the time of initially accounting for those loans. These amendments are not relevant to the
Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRSs. The Group adopted these amendments for the current year.


PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS – Borrowing Costs
The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFRS, an entity that capitalized borrowing costs
in accordance with its previous generally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward,
without any adjustment, the amount previously capitalized in its opening statement of financial
position at the date of transition. Subsequent to the adoption of PFRS, borrowing costs are
recognized in accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs. The amendment does not apply to the
Group as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.



PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the requirements for comparative
information
These amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information that are disclosed
voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective application of an accounting policy,
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or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in the financial statements. An entity
must include comparative information in the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative period.
The additional comparative period does not need to contain a complete set of financial
statements. On the other hand, supporting notes for the third balance sheet (mandatory when
there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or
reclassification of items in the financial statements) are not required.
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of servicing equipment
The amendment clarifies that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise. The amendment does not have
any significant impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.


PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity
instruments
The amendment clarifies that income taxes relating to distributions to equity holders and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, Income
Taxes. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Group‟s financial position or
performance.



PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information for
total assets and liabilities
The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment
need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker and there has been a material change from the amount disclosed in the entity‟s previous
annual financial statements for that reportable segment. The amendment affects disclosures only
and has no impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.

Business Combination and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree‟s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in general and administrative expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and financial liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer‟s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability will be recognized in accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it will not be re-measured. Subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent consideration does not
fall within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate PFRS.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in consolidated statement of income.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group‟s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.
The Group‟s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group‟s share of net assets of the associate or joint
venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in
the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for impairment.
The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group‟s share of the results of operations of the
associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group‟s
OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or
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joint venture, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or
joint venture.
The aggregate of the Group‟s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on
the face of the consolidated statement of income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss
after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.
The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those
of the Group.
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in the associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, then
recognizes the impairment loss in the consolidated statement of income.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or
loss.
Interest in Joint Operations
A joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation if the parties with joint control have rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement. For interest in joint operations, the Group
recognize/s:
 assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
 liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
 revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation;
 share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and
 expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
The accounting and measurement for each of these items is in accordance with the PFRSs applicable.
The assets and liabilities are presented as “Current Assets of Joint Operation” and “Current Liabilities
of Joint Operation”, respectively, as these consist of individually immaterial items.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible with remaining maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
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Short-term Investments
Short-term investments are short-term, highly liquid investments that are convertible to known
amounts of cash with original remaining of more than three months but less than one year from dates
of acquisition.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition. Financial instruments within the scope of PAS 39 are recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized using
the trade date accounting. Derivatives are also recognized on trade date basis.
Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value. The initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs, except for
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL. The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets. Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. The Group
determines the classification of financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every financial reporting date.
Determination of Fair Value. The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, and
non-financial assets such as investment properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortized cost are disclosed in Note 9.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:



In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:


Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities



Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable



Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and significant liabilities.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
“Day 1” Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (“Day 1” difference) in the consolidated statement of
income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data used are
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the
consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the
“Day 1” difference amount.
Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL include financial
assets and liabilities held for trading purposes and financial assets and liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL.
Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling and repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives are also classified under financial assets and liabilities at FVPL including embedded
derivatives.
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Financial assets or liabilities may be designated by management on initial recognition as at FVPL
when the following criteria are met:


The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on
a different basis;



The assets or liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy; or



The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does
not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in the consolidated statement
of income except for derivative designated in an effective hedging relationship. Interest earned or
incurred is recorded in interest income or expense, respectively, while dividend income is recorded
when the right to receive payment has been established.
FPH‟s investment in quoted shares of stock of Cambridge Silicon Radio plc (CSR, a U.K.-based
corporation) presented under “Other current assets” is classified as financial assets at FVPL as at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
Classified under financial liabilities at FVPL are EDC‟s foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency swap contracts as at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
These derivatives were not designated as hedging instruments by the Group.
HTM Investments. HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Group‟s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sells other than an insignificant amount of
HTM investments, the entire category is deemed tainted and reclassified as AFS financial assets.
After initial measurement, these investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral part of the effective interest
rate. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the HTM
investments are derecognized and impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The effects
of restatement on foreign currency-denominated HTM investments are also recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
The Group has no HTM investments as at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into
with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as AFS
financial assets or financial assets at FVPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if
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maturity is within 12 months from financial reporting date.
noncurrent assets.

Otherwise, these are classified as

After initial measurement, the loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral part of the
effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when
the loans and receivables are derecognized and impaired as well as through the amortization process.
Classified under loans and receivables are cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, trade
and other receivables and restricted cash deposits.
AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets which are
designated as such or do not qualify to be classified in any of the three preceding categories. These
are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions. AFS financial assets are classified as current assets if management intends to
sell these financial assets within 12 months from financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are
classified as noncurrent assets.
After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses being recognized as other comprehensive income (losses) until the
investments are derecognized or until the investments are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as other comprehensive income (losses) is included in
the consolidated statement of income.
AFS financial assets that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and whose fair values
cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost.
Classified under AFS financial assets are quoted and unquoted investments in government securities,
proprietary membership shares and equity shares as at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
Other Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not held for
trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities
arising from operations or borrowings. Other financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if
maturity is within 12 months from financial reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrent liabilities.
Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as
through the amortization process.
Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with availment of long-term debt and issuances of bonds
are deferred and amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the loans and bonds.
Debt issuance costs are included in the measurement of the related long-term debt and bonds payable
and are allocated accordingly to respective current and noncurrent portions.
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Classified under other financial liabilities are loans payable, trade payables and other
current liabilities, bonds payable and long-term debts as at September 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting
The Group enters into derivative and hedging transactions, primarily interest rate swaps, cross
currency swap and foreign currency forwards, as needed, for the sole purpose of managing the risks
that are associated with the Group‟s borrowing activities or as required by the lenders in certain cases.
Derivative financial instruments (including bifurcated embedded derivatives) are initially recognized
at fair value on the date on when the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting is taken directly to the consolidated statement of
income for the current year under “Mark-to-market gain (loss) on derivatives” account.
For purposes of hedge accounting, derivatives can be designated either as cash flow hedges or fair
value hedges depending on the type of risk exposure it hedges.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group opts to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will
assess the hedging instrument‟s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item‟s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which they were designated.
The Group accounts for its interest rate swap agreements as cash flow hedges of the floating rate
exposure of its long-term debts. The Group also entered into cross currency swap and foreign
currency forwards accounted for as cash flow hedges for its Philippine peso-denominated loans and
Euro-denominated liabilities, respectively.
The Group has no derivatives that are designated as fair value hedges as at September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.
Cash Flow Hedges. Cash flow hedges are hedges of the exposure to variability of cash flows that are
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset, liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognized directly as other comprehensive income (loss) under the
“Cumulative translation adjustments” account in the consolidated statement of financial position
while the ineffective portion is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Amounts recognized as other comprehensive income (loss) are transferred to the consolidated
statement of income when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged financial
income or expense is recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item
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is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts recognized as other comprehensive income
(loss) are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss) are transferred to the consolidated statement of income. If the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
(loss) remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected
to occur, the amount is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
In the case of EDC, it has existing cross currency swaps to partially hedge its exposure to foreign
currency and interest rate risks on its floating rate loan that is benchmarked against US LIBOR.
Embedded Derivatives. An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument
that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivatives.
The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host contracts
when the Group first becomes a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.
Embedded derivatives are bifurcated from their host contracts, when the following conditions are
met: (a) the entire hybrid contracts (composed of both the host contract and the embedded derivative)
are not accounted at FVPL; (b) when their economic risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of their respective host contracts; and (c) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative.
Embedded derivatives that are bifurcated from the host contracts are accounted for either as financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVPL. Changes in fair values are included in the consolidated
statement of income.
Current Versus Noncurrent Classification
Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging instruments are classified as
current or non-current or separated into a current and non-current portion based on an assessment of
the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows):


When the Group will hold a derivative as an economic hedge (and does not apply hedge
accounting) for a period beyond 12 months after the reporting date, the derivative is classified as
non-current (or separated into current and non-current portions) consistent with the classification
of the underlying item.



Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host contract are classified consistent
with the cash flows of the host contract.



Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective hedging instruments, are classified
consistently with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative instrument is
separated into current portion and non-current portion only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Asset. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of financial assets) is derecognized when:


The rights to receive cash flows from the asset expire;



The Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or



The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
“pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group‟s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Financial Liability. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the
Group first assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the borrower) exists individually for financial assets
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that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset‟s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have
not yet been incurred) discounted using the financial asset‟s original effective interest rate. If there is
no objective evidence that impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for
impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors‟ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment for impairment.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of allowance account and the amount of
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income continues to be
recognized based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. If in case the receivable is proven
to have no realistic prospect of future recovery, any allowance provided for such receivable is written
off against the carrying value of the impaired receivable.
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at reversal date.
AFS Financial Assets. For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each financial reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value of the investments below its cost. “Significant” is to be evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value
has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
(measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in consolidated statement of income) is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed in the consolidated statement of income.
Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the rate of interest used to discount future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and that increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of income.
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Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting arrangements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented at gross amounts in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each
item of inventory to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:
Land and development costs

– Property acquired or being constructed for sale
in the ordinary course of business, rather than to be
held for rental or capital appreciation, is held as
inventory.
Cost includes land cost, amounts paid to contractors
for construction and borrowing costs, planning and
design costs, costs of site preparation, professional
fees, property transfer taxes, construction overheads
and other related costs.

Fuel inventories

– Cost includes the invoice amount, net of trade
and cash discounts. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Finished goods and work in-process

– Determined on the weighted average basis; cost
includes materials and labor and a proportion of
manufacturing overhead costs based on normal
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Raw materials and spare parts
and supplies

–

Purchase cost based on moving average method

The net realizable value is determined as follows:
Finished goods

–

Estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs necessary to make
the sale

Land development costs and
work- in-process

–

Selling price in the ordinary course of the
business, based on market prices at the
reporting date, less estimated specifically
identifiable costs of completion and the
estimated costs of sale
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Fuel inventories

Raw materials, spare parts and supplies

–

Fuel cost charged to Meralco, under the
respective Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)
of FGPC and FGP with Meralco, which is
based on weighted average cost of actual fuel
consumed

−

Invoice amount, net of trade and cash discounts
for EDC

–

Current replacement cost

Other Current Assets
Advances to Contractors and Suppliers. Advances to contractors and suppliers represent advance
payments on services to be incurred in connection with the Group‟s operations and suppliers. These
are capitalized to projects under “Land and development costs” account in the consolidated statement
of financial position, upon actual receipt of services, which is normally within 12 months or within
the normal operating cycle. These are considered as nonfinancial instruments as these will be applied
against future billings from contractors normally within one year.
Prepayments. Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before these are
utilized. The prepaid expenses are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged
to the appropriate accounts in the consolidated statement of income when incurred. Prepayments that
are expected to be realized for a period of no more than 12 months after the financial reporting period
are classified as current asset; otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent asset.
Prepaid Taxes. Prepaid taxes are carried at cost less any impairment in value. Prepaid taxes consist
mainly of tax credits that can be used by the Group in the future. Tax credits represent unapplied
certificates for claims from input value-added tax (VAT) credits received from the Bureau of Internal
Revenue (BIR) and the Bureau of Customs (BOC). Such tax credits may be used for payment of
internal revenue taxes or customs duties. Tax credits expected to be applied beyond 12 months is
recognized under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
Input Value-Added Tax (VAT). Input VAT represents VAT imposed on the Group by its suppliers
and contractors for the acquisition of goods and services required under Philippine taxation laws and
regulations. Input VAT is recognized as an asset and will be used to offset against the Group‟s
current output VAT liabilities and any excess will be claimed as tax credits. Input VAT is stated at its
recoverable amount.
Deferred input VAT related to the unpaid portion of the acquisition cost of the asset expected to be
settled beyond the succeeding year is recognized under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWT). CWT represents the amount withheld by the Group‟s
customers in relation to its rent income. These are recognized upon collection of the related billings
and are utilized as tax credits against income tax due as allowed by the Philippine taxation laws and
regulations. CWT is stated at its estimated NRV. CWT that will not be realized within 12 months is
classified as non-current.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and any impairment in value. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value.
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment, consist of its purchase price including import duties,
borrowing costs (during the construction period) and other costs directly attributable in bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes the cost of
replacing the part of such property, plant and equipment when the recognition criteria are met and the
present value of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site.
The income generated wholly and necessarily as a result of the process of bringing the asset into the
location and condition for its intended use (e.g., net proceeds from selling any items produced while
testing whether the asset is functioning properly) is credited to the cost of the asset. When the
incidental operations are not necessary to bring an item to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the income and related expenses
of incidental operations are not offset against the cost of the asset but are recognized in profit or loss
and included in their respective classifications of income and expense.
Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to current operations in the period the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of property, plant and equipment.
The Group divided the power plants into significant parts. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives of the assets:
Asset Type
Power plants, buildings, other structures and
leasehold improvements
Production wells
Fluid collection and recycling system (FCRS)
Transportation equipment
Exploration, machinery and equipment

Number of Years
5 to 30 years or lease term,
whichever is shorter
10-40
13-20
3 to 20 years
2 to 25 years

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed at each financial reporting
date to ensure that the useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation of an item of property, plant and equipment begins when it becomes available for use,
i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Depreciation ceases at the earlier of the date that the item is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with
PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, and the date the asset is
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derecognized. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease term or the economic life of the
related asset, whichever is shorter.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Property, plant and equipment also include the estimated rehabilitation and restoration costs of the
EDC‟s steam fields and power plants located in the contract areas for which EDC is constructively
liable. These costs are included under “FCRS and production wells” account. It also includes the
asset preservation obligation of FPIC under “Machinery and equipment account”. The asset
preservation obligations recognized represent the best estimate of the expenditures required to
preserve the pipeline at the end of their useful lives and to preserve the property and equipment of
FPIC.
Construction in-progress represents properties under construction and includes cost of construction,
equipment and other direct costs. Construction in-progress and major spares and surplus assets
available for use are stated at cost and is not depreciated until such time that the assets are put into
operational use.
Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Land is carried at cost less any impairment in value. Cost also includes the
cost of replacing part of an existing investment property if the recognition criteria are met and
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
5 to 20 years. The investment properties‟ estimated useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, as appropriate, at each financial reporting date.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of de-recognition.
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. Transfers into
and from investment property do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred.
Intangible Assets (Concession Rights for Contracts Acquired, Water Rights, Pipeline Rights,
and Other Intangible Assets)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as of the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
any impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized. Instead, related expenditures are reflected in the consolidated statement of
income in the year the expenditure is incurred.
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least each financial reporting date.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the said intangible asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in
the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
made prospectively.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Concession Rights for Contracts Acquired
The concession rights for contracts acquired have been valued based on the expected future cash
flows using the Multiple Excess Earnings Method (MEEM) as of the date of acquisition. MEEM is
the most commonly used approach in valuing customer-related assets, although it may be used to
value other intangible assets as well. The asset value is estimated as the sum of the discounted future
excess earnings attributable to the asset over the remaining project period.
Water Rights
The cost of water rights of FG Hydro is measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition of the water rights, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Water
rights are amortized using the straight-line method over 25 years, which is the term of the agreement
with the National Irrigation Administration (NIA).
Pipeline Rights
Pipeline rights represent the construction cost of the natural gas pipeline facility connecting the
natural gas supplier‟s refinery to FGP‟s power plant including incidental transfer costs incurred in
connection with the transfer of ownership of the pipeline facility to the natural gas supplier. The cost
of pipeline rights is amortized using the straight-line method over 22 years, which is the term of the
Gas Sale and Purchase Agreements (GSPA).
Wind Energy Project Development Costs
Project development costs are expensed as incurred until management determines that the project is
technically, commercially and financially viable, at which time, project development costs are
capitalized. Project viability generally occurs in tandem with management‟s determination that a
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project should be classified as an advanced project, such as when favorable results of a system impact
study are received, interconnected agreements are obtained and project financing is in place.
Following the initial recognition of the project development cost as an asset, the cost model is applied
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when the development of wind farm assets is
complete and the wind farm asset is available for use. It is amortized using the straight-line method
over the period of expected future benefit. During the period in which the asset is not-yet-availablefor-use, the project development costs are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether
there is any indication of impairment.
Exploration and Evaluation Assets (included under “Other noncurrent assets” account)
EDC follows the full cost method of accounting for its exploration costs determined on the basis of
each service contract area. Under this method, all exploration costs relating to each service contract
are accumulated and deferred under the “Exploration and evaluation assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position pending the determination of whether the wells has
proved reserves. Capitalized expenditures include costs of license acquisition, technical services and
studies, exploration drilling and testing, and appropriate technical and administrative expenses.
General overhead or costs incurred prior to having obtained the legal rights to explore an area are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income when incurred.
If tests conducted on the drilled exploratory wells reveal that these wells cannot produce proved
reserves, the capitalized costs are charged to expense except when management decides to use the
unproductive wells, for recycling or waste disposal. Once the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of the project to produce proved reserves are established, the exploration and evaluation
assets shall be reclassified to property, plant and equipment.
Prepaid Major Spare Parts
Prepaid major spare parts (included in the “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated
statement of financial position) is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Prepaid major spare
parts pertain to advance payments made to Siemens Power Operations, Inc. (SPOI) for major spare
parts that will be replaced during the schedule maintenance outage of power plants.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Properties, Concession Rights for Contracts Acquired,
Water Rights, Pipeline Rights, Other Intangible Assets, Exploration and Evaluation Assets, Prepaid
Major Spare Parts and Input VAT claims for refund/tax credits. At each financial reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any indication that its non-financial assets may be impaired. When
an indicator of impairment exists or when an annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group makes a formal estimate of an asset‟s recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset‟s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
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of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit). An
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year in which it arises.
An assessment is made at each financial reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the assets or cash-generating unit‟s recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset‟s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
Goodwill. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually regardless whether impairment
indicators are present or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, an
impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable
amount in future periods. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill at December 31
of each year.
Investments in Associates and a Joint Venture. The Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognize an impairment loss on its investments in associates and a joint venture. The Group
determines at each financial reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investments are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being
the difference between the recoverable value of the associate or joint venture and the carrying amount
of investment and recognizes the amount of impairment loss in the consolidated statement of income.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale, which necessarily takes a substantial period of time. Capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing
costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the asset is substantially ready for its
intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the year they occur.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive): (a) as a
result of a past event, (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
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obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of the provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized under the “Finance costs” account in the consolidated statement of income.
The Group recognized provisions arising from legal and/or constructive obligation associated with the
cost of dismantling and removing an item of property, plant and equipment and restoring the site
where it is located. The obligation occurs either when the asset is acquired or as a consequence of
using the asset for the purpose of generating electricity during a particular year. Dismantling costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows.
The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the
dismantling liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized in the
consolidated statement of income under the “Finance costs” account. The estimated future costs of
dismantling are reviewed annually and adjusted, as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs
or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in
the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Capital Stock, Preferred Stock and Capital in Excess of Par Value
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the Group issues more than one
class of stock, a separate class of stock is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares
issued. Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in
equity as deduction, net of tax, from proceeds when the stocks are sold at premium, otherwise such
are expensed as incurred. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par
value, if any, are recognized as capital in excess of par value.
Treasury Stock
Shares of FPH that are acquired by any of the Group entities are recorded at cost in the equity section
of the consolidated statement of financial position. No gain or loss is recognized on the purchase,
sale, re-issue or cancellation of the treasury stocks. Upon reissuance of treasury stocks, the excess of
proceeds from reissuance over the cost of treasury stocks is credited to “Capital in excess of par
value.” However, if the cost of treasury stocks exceeds the proceeds from reissuance, such excess is
charged to “Capital in excess of par value” account but only to the extent of previously set up capital
in excess of par for the same class of stock. Otherwise, this is debited against the “Retained earnings”
account.
Retained Earnings
The amount included in retained earnings includes net income attributable to the Group‟s equity
holders and reduced by dividends on capital stock. Dividends are recognized as a liability and
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deducted from retained earnings when they are declared. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the financial reporting date.
Dividends on Preferred and Common Stocks
The Group may pay dividends in cash, property or by the issuance of shares of stock. Cash dividends
are subject to the approval of the BOD, while property and stock dividends are subject to approval by
the BOD, at least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock of the shareholders at a shareholders‟
meeting called for such purpose (for stock dividends only), and by the Philippine SEC. The Group
may declare dividends only out of its unrestricted retained earnings.
Cash and property dividends on preferred and common stocks are recognized as liability and
deducted from retained earnings when declared.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, regardless of
when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.
The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory
and credit risks.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Electricity
Revenue from sale of electricity (in the case FGP and FGPC) is based on the respective PPAs of FGP
and FGPC. The PPAs qualify as leases on the basis that FGP and FGPC sell all of its output to
Meralco. These agreements call for a take-or-pay arrangement where payment is made principally on
the basis of the availability of the power plants and not on actual deliveries of electricity generated.
These arrangements are determined to be operating leases as the significant portion of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the assets are retained by FGP and FGPC.
Revenue from sale of electricity is composed of fixed capacity fees, fixed and variable operating and
maintenance fees, fuel, wheeling and pipeline charges, and supplemental fees. The portion related to
the fixed capacity fees is considered as operating lease component and the same fees are recognized
on a straight-line basis, based on the actual Net Dependable Capacity (NDC) tested or proven, over
the terms of the respective PPAs. Variable operating and maintenance fees, fuel, wheeling and
pipeline charges and supplemental fees are recognized monthly based on the actual energy delivered.
In the case of EDC, GCGI and BGI, revenues from sale of electricity using geothermal energy is
consummated whenever the electricity generated by these companies is transmitted through the
transmission line designated by the buyer, for a consideration. Revenue from sale of electricity is
based on sales price. Sale of electricity using hydroelectric (in the case of FG Hydro) and geothermal
power (in the case of GCGI and BGI) is composed of generation fees from spot sales to the
Wholesale Electricity Spot Market (WESM) and the Power Supply Agreement (PSA) with various
electric companies and is recognized monthly based on the actual energy delivered.
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Meanwhile, revenue from sale of electricity through ancillary services to the National Grid
Corporation of the Philippines (NGCP) is recognized monthly based on the capacity scheduled and/or
dispatched and provided.
Real Estate
Sale of Condominium Units. The Group assesses whether it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group when the sales prices are collectible. Collectibility of the sales price is
demonstrated by the buyer‟s commitment to pay, which in turn is supported by substantial initial and
continuing investments that give the buyer a stake in the property sufficient that the risk of loss
through default motivates the buyer to honor its obligation to the seller. Collectibility is also assessed
by considering factors such as the credit standing of the buyer, age and location of the property.
Revenue from sales of completed real estate projects is accounted for using the full accrual method.
In accordance with Philippine Interpretation Committee Q&A No. 2006-01, the percentage-ofcompletion method is used to recognize income from sales of projects where the Group has material
obligations under the sales contract to complete the project after the property is sold, the equitable
interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is beyond preliminary stage (i.e., engineering
and design work, execution of construction contracts, site clearance and preparation, excavation, and
completion of the building foundation are finished), and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured. Under this method, revenue is recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled,
measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract
work.
If any of the criteria under the full accrual or percentage-of-completion method is not met, the deposit
method is applied until all the conditions for recording a sale are met. Pending recognition of sale,
cash received from buyers is recognized as deposits from pre-selling of condominium units.
Any excess of collections over the recognized receivables are presented as part of “Trade and other
payables” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Cost of real estate sold is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applied. Cost of
condominium units sold before completion of the development is determined on the basis of the
acquisition cost of the land plus its full development costs, which include estimated costs for future
development works, as determined by in-house technical staff.
The cost of inventory recognized in profit or loss on disposal is determined with reference to the
specific costs incurred on the property, allocated to saleable area based on relative size and takes into
account the percentage of completion used for revenue recognition purposes.
Contract costs include all direct materials and labor costs and those direct costs related to contract
performance. Expected losses on contracts are recognized immediately when it is probable that the
total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue. Changes in contract performance, contract
conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions, and
final contract settlements which may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins are
recognized in the year in which the changes are determined.
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Other costs incurred during the pre-selling stage to sell real estate are capitalized as prepaid costs, and
shown as part of prepaid expenses under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated statement
of financial position, if they are directly associated with and their recovery is reasonably expected
from the sale of real estate that are initially being accounted for as deposits. Capitalized selling costs
shall be charged to expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized as earned.
Lease. Lease income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms or based on the terms of the lease, as applicable.
Cinema, Mall and Other Revenues. Revenue is recognized when services are rendered.
Sale of Merchandise
Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.
Contracts and Services
Revenue from Construction Contracts. Revenue is recognized based on the percentage of completion
method of accounting using surveys of work performed by professionally-qualified surveyors to
measure the stage of completion.
Contract costs include all direct materials, labor costs and indirect costs related to contract
performance. Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability including those
arising from contract penalty provisions and final contract settlements, which may result in revisions
to estimated costs and gross margins, are recognized in the year in which the revisions are
determined.
Claims for additional contract revenues are recognized when negotiations have reached an advanced
stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim; and the amount that will be
accepted by the customer can be measured reliably. Variation orders are included in contract revenue
when it is probable that the customer will approve the variation and the amount of revenue arising
from the variation can be measured reliably.
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of amounts billed on uncompleted contracts accounted for
under the percentage of completion method are classified as “Costs and estimated earnings in excess
of billings on uncompleted contracts” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Pipeline Services. Revenues from pipeline services are recognized when services are rendered using
base charges. Adjustments of billings for pipeline services over and above the base charges are
recorded at the time of settlement with shippers.
Equity in Net Earnings (Losses) of Associates and Joint Ventures
The Group recognizes its share in the net income of associates and joint ventures proportionate to the
equity in the economic shares of such associates, in accordance with the equity method. If an
associate or a joint venture has outstanding cumulative preferred shares that are held by parties other
than the investor and are classified as equity, the Group computes its share in profits or losses after
adjusting for the dividends on such shares, whether or not the dividends have been declared.
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Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues (using the effective interest rate, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset), taking into account the effective yield on
the asset.
Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the Group‟s right to receive the payment is established.
Expense Recognition
Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decrease in equity, other than those relating
to distributions to equity participants, and are recognized when these are incurred.
Cost of Sale of Electricity
These include expenses incurred by the departments directly responsible for the generation of
revenues from steam, electricity and performance of drilling services (i.e., Plant Operations,
Production, Maintenance, Transmission and Dispatch, Wells Drilling and Maintenance Department)
at operating project locations in the case of EDC. This account also includes the costs incurred by
FGPC and FGP, particularly fuel cost, power plant operations and maintenance, and depreciation and
amortization, which are necessary expenses incurred to generate the revenues from sale of electricity.
These are expensed when incurred.
Foreign Currency Translations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is FPH‟s functional and
presentation currency. All subsidiaries and associates evaluate their primary economic and operating
environment and, determine their functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are initially measured using that functional currency.
Transactions and Balances. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency rate prevailing on the period of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency are re-translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange prevailing at the
financial reporting date.
All differences are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Nonmonetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Group Companies. The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries and associates with
functional currency other than the Philippine peso are translated to Philippine peso as follows:




Assets and liabilities using the spot rate of exchange prevailing at the financial reporting date;
Components of equity using historical exchange rates; and
Income and expenses using the monthly weighted average exchange rate.

The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized as other comprehensive income
(loss). Upon disposal of any of these subsidiaries and associates, the deferred cumulative amount
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recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) relating to that particular subsidiary or associate
will be recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting will commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. In cases where the Group acts as a lessee, operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. In cases where the Group is a lessor, the initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the
same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are
earned.
Retirement Costs
FPH and certain of its subsidiaries have distinct funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement
plans. The plans cover all permanent employees, each administered by their respective retirement
committee.
The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted
for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs comprise the following:
a.
b.

Service cost
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
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routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized when
plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent
qualified actuaries.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in profit or loss.
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly to
the Group. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected
disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the settlement of
the related obligations). If the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
The Group‟s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is
virtually certain.
Termination
Benefit
Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
employee‟s employment as a result of either an entity‟s decision to terminate an employee‟s
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee‟s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.
A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs.
Initial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefits are measured in accordance with
the nature of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-term employee benefits,
or other long-term employee benefits.
Employee Leave Entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the
employees. The undiscounted liability for leave expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period is recognized for services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.
Share-based Payment Transactions
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Certain employees (including senior executives) of FPH, First Gen group, Rockwell and First
Balfour, Inc. receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions. Under such
circumstance, the employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equitysettled transactions”).
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of
the stock options at the date the option is granted. The fair value is determined using the BlackScholes-Merton Option Pricing Model. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of FPH (“market
conditions”), if applicable.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on
which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (“the vesting date”).
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each financial reporting date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group‟s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest at that date. The charge or
credit to the consolidated statement of income for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognized as of the beginning and end of that year.
No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the
expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An
additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the sharebased payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled with payment, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the
counterparty not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were modifications of the original award, as described in the foregoing.
Income Tax
Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current year are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted as at the financial
reporting date.
Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary
differences as at the financial reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:


Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and



In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular income tax and
unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the carry-forward of unused tax
credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not
recognized:


Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and



In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each financial reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
financial reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside of profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
Earnings per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (less preferred dividends, if any) for the year
attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year, with retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends or stock splits declared during the
year.
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Diluted EPS is calculated in the same manner, adjusted for the effects of the outstanding stock options
under FPH‟s Executive Stock Option Plan (ESOP). Outstanding stock options will have dilutive
effect under the treasury stock method only when the average market price of the underlying common
share during the period exceeds the exercise price of the option.
Where the EPS effect of the assumed exercise of outstanding options has anti-dilutive effect, diluted
EPS is presented the same as basic EPS with a disclosure that the effect of the exercise of the
instruments is anti-dilutive.
Segment Reporting
For purposes of management reporting, the Group is organized and managed separately according to
the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit. Such business segments are the bases upon which the Group reports its primary segment
information.
Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group has one geographical segment and derives principally all its revenues from
domestic operations.
Discontinued Operations
Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a
single amount as net income (loss) from discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of
income.
Events After the Financial Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group‟s financial position at the
financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements when material.
Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The following are the new and revised accounting standards and interpretations that became effective
subsequent in 2014. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does not expect the adoption of these
new and amended PAS, PFRS and Philippine interpretations to have any significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
New and Amended Standards


Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27). These amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. They provide an exception to
the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity under
PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss. It is not expected that this amendment would be relevant to
the Group since none of the entities in the Group would qualify to be an investment entity under
PFRS 10.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (IFRIC 21). IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity
recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the
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interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum
threshold is reached. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2014. The Group does not expect that IFRIC 21 will have material financial impact in future
financial statements.


PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments). These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument
meets certain criteria. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2014. The Group has not novated its derivatives during the current period. However,
these amendments would be considered for future novations.



PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments). The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to
settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation only and have no
impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance. The amendments to PAS 32 are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.



PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments).
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans.
Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as reductions
to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the remeasurements of the net
defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service. Contributions that are
discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plans. The amendments to PAS 19 are to be retrospectively applied for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.



Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
−

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition. The amendment revised the
definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added the definitions of
performance condition and service condition to clarify various issues. This amendment shall
be prospectively applied to share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
after July 1, 2014.

−

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination. The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the
definition of a financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32. Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the
scope of PFRS 9 (or PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted). The amendment shall be
prospectively applied to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
July 1, 2014. The Group shall consider this amendment for future business combinations.
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PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segments‟ Assets to the Entity‟s Assets. The amendments require
entities to disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating two or more operating
segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the operating segments that
have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been assessed in
determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics.
The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide reconciliations of the total of the
reportable segments‟ assets to the entity‟s assets if such amounts are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker. These amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The amendments affect
disclosures only and have no impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.

−

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Short-term Receivables and Payables. The amendment
clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be held at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

−

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement
of Accumulated Depreciation. The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the
revalued amount, and the asset shall be treated in one of the following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment
losses.
b. The accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendment has no impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.

−

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel. The amendments clarify
that an entity is a related party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or any member of a
group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel services to the reporting
entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The amendments also clarify that a
reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity (also referred
to as management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees or directors. The reporting entity is required to disclose
the amounts incurred for the key management personnel services provided by a separate
management entity. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively. The amendments affect disclosures only and
have no impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.

−

PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization. The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the
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carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be
treated in one of the following ways:
a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment
losses.
b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset.
The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted
for in accordance with the standard.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. The
amendments shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period. The amendments have no impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.


Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:
−

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards - Meaning of
„Effective PFRSs‟. The amendment clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a
current standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early
application, provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented
in the entity‟s first PFRS financial statements. This amendment is not applicable to the
Group as it is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.

−

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements. The amendment
clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.
The amendment has no significant impact on the Group‟s financial position or performance.

−

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception. The amendment clarifies that the
portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and
other contracts. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2014 and is applied prospectively. The amendment has no significant impact on the Group‟s
financial position or performance.

−

PAS 40, Investment Property. The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3
and PAS 40 when classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied property.
The amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business
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combination within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is
applied prospectively. The amendment has no significant impact on the Group‟s financial
position or performance.
−

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments. PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first and third phases of the
project to replace PAS 39 and applies to the classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities and hedge accounting, respectively. Work on the second phase, which
relate to impairment of financial instruments, and the limited amendments to the
classification and measurement model is still ongoing, with a view to replace PAS 39 in its
entirety. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial
recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked, be
subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the
objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give
rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through
OCI or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For liabilities designated as at FVPL using the fair value option, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change relating to the entity‟s own credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried
forward to PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the criteria for
using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Company‟s financial assets, but will potentially have
no impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
On hedge accounting, PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting model of
PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rules-based
hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect of credit risk
on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item,
not only for financial items, but also for non-financial items, provided that the risk
component is separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of
an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to
be excluded from the designation of a financial instrument as the hedging instrument and
accounted for as costs of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge
accounting.
PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments to the classification and measurement model and
impairment methodology. The Group will not adopt the standard before the completion of
the limited amendments and the second phase of the project.

−

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate. This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
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undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this
interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard
against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed. Adoption of the
interpretation will result in a change in the revenue and cost recognition of the Company on
sale of condominium units and accounting for certain pre-selling costs.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of unaudited consolidated financial statements requires the Group‟s management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the financial reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset and liability affected in future years.
In the process of applying the Group‟s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.
Judgments
Determination of Functional Currency. The Parent Company and all other subsidiaries and
associates, except for First Gen group, FSRI, First Philec Solar, FPNC, FGHC International, FPH
Fund and FPH Ventures, have determined that their functional currency is the Philippine peso. The
Philippine peso is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company
and all other subsidiaries and associates, except for those entities earlier mentioned, operate. The
Philippine peso is also the currency that mainly influences the sale of goods and services as well as
the costs of selling such goods and providing such services. First Gen group, FSRI, First Philec
Solar, FPNC, FGHC International, FPH Fund and FPH Ventures have determined the U.S. dollar to
be their functional currency. The accounts of the Group entities using U.S. dollar as functional
currency were translated to Philippine peso for purposes of consolidation to the Group‟s accounts.
Operating Lease Commitments - The Group as Lessor. The respective PPAs of FGP and FGPC
qualify as leases on the basis that FGP and FGPC sell all of their output to MERALCO. These
agreements call for a take-or-pay arrangement where payment is made principally on the basis of the
availability of the power plants and not on actual deliveries of electricity generated. These lease
arrangements are determined to be operating leases where a significant portion of the risks and
benefits of ownership of the assets are retained by FGP and FGPC.
Accordingly, the power plant assets are recorded as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment
and the fixed capacity fees billed and fixed operating and maintenance fees billed to MERALCO and
NPC are recorded as operating revenues on straight-line basis over the applicable terms of the PPAs.
Transfers of Investment Properties. The Group has made transfers to investment properties after
determining that there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement
of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction or development. Transfers are also
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made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale. These
transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investment properties at the date of change in
use.
Interest in a Joint Venture. The Group has assessed that it has joint control in its joint venture
agreements.
Classification of financial instruments. The Group exercises judgment in classifying a financial
instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the
definition of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a
financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
Discontinued operations. A discontinued operation is a component of the Group business that
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations that has been disposed
of or is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. Classification as a
discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified
as held for sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative
consolidated statements of income and consolidated statements of cash flows are restated, as if the
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative periods, so as to provide some form
of comparability with the new presentation.
On May 12, 2009, the BOD of Prime Terracota approved and issued voting preferred stocks to
Quialex Realty Corporation and Lopez Inc. Retirement Fund. Due to the said equity transaction, the
Group through First Gen is deemed to have lost control over Prime Terracota since First Gen‟s voting
interest in Prime Terracota has been reduced to approximately 45% and has lost control over the BOD
of Prime Terracota. In addition, the loss of control is treated as a deemed sale transaction in
accordance with PAS 27.
Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
Impairment of Other Non-financial Assets (i.e., Investment and Deposits in Associates, Investment
Properties, Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets, Prepaid Gas and Prepaid Major Spare
Parts). The Group assesses impairment of these non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors that
the Group consider important, which could trigger an impairment review include the following:


Significant under-performance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
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Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and



Significant negative industry and economic trends.

The Group recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use. The fair value
less cost to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm's
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model which requires use
of estimates of a suitable discount rate and expected future cash inflows. Recoverable amounts are
estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the assets
belong.
There were no indicators for impairment as at September 30, 2014 and 2013.
Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Properties and Intangible
Assets. The Group estimated the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets based on the periods over which the assets are expected to be
available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practices, internal technical evaluation
and experience with similar assets and arrangements.
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible
assets are reviewed at each financial reporting date and updated, if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other
limits in the use of these property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets.
However, it is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates brought about by changes in the aforementioned factors.
The amounts and timing of recording the depreciation and amortization for any year, with regard to
the property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets, would be affected by
changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets would increase the recorded
depreciation and amortization and decrease the noncurrent assets.
There is no change in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets during the year.
Impairment of Investments in Equity Securities. The Group considers investments in equity securities
as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of such
investments below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. Except for investment in
MERALCO shares which the Group considers impaired if the decline in fair value is at least 50%, the
Group treats “significant” generally as 20% or more and “prolonged” as greater than 12 months. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted
equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.
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Impairment loss recognized in the consolidated financial statements for the period ended September
30, 2014 and 2013 was nil and P
=99 million, respectively.
Impairment of Loans and Receivables. The Group reviews its loans and receivables at each financial
reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated
statement of income. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such
estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes in the allowance.
The Group maintains an allowance for impairment of receivables at a level that management
considers adequate to provide for potential uncollectibility of its trade and other receivables. The
Group evaluates specific balances where management has information that certain amounts may not
be collectible. In these cases, the Group uses judgment, based on available facts and circumstances,
and a review of the factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts including, but not limited to,
the age and status of the receivables, collection experience, and past loss experience.
The review is made by management on a continuing basis to identify accounts to be provided with
allowance. These specific reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received
affects the amount estimated.
In addition to specific allowance against individually significant receivables, the Group also makes a
collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifically identified as
requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. Collective
assessment of impairment is made on a portfolio or group basis after performing a regular review of
age and status of the portfolio/group of accounts relative to historical collections, changes in payment
terms, and other factors that may affect ability to collect payments.
Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories. Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Estimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at
the time the estimates are made, of the amount the inventories are expected to realize. A review of
the items of inventories is performed at each financial reporting date to reflect the accurate valuation
of inventories in the consolidated financial statements.
Estimation of Asset Retirement Obligations. Under certain Environmental Compliance Certificate
(ECC) issued by the Department of Environmental and Natural Resources (DENR), the Group,
specifically, FGP and FGPC, has legal obligations to dismantle the power plant assets at the end of
their useful lives. FG Bukidnon, on the other hand, has contractual obligation under the lease
agreements with Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management (PSALM) Corporation to
dismantle its power plant assets at the end of the useful lives. The asset retirement obligations
recognized represent the best estimate of the expenditures required to dismantle the power plants at
the end of their useful lives. Such cost estimates are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the
current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
Each year, the asset retirement obligation is increased to reflect the accretion of discount and to
accrue an estimate for the effects of inflation, with the charges being recognized in the “Finance
costs” account, presented in the consolidated statement of income. While it is believed that the
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assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or obligations in future periods.
Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each financial
reporting date are reviewed and reduced to the extent that there are no longer sufficient taxable profits
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The Group‟s assessment of the
recognition of deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
MCIT and NOLCO is based on the forecasted taxable income of the following reporting period. This
forecast is based on the Group‟s past results and future expectations on revenues and expenses.
Estimating Revenue and Cost of Real Estate Sales. The Group‟s revenue and cost recognition
policies require management to make use of estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported
amounts of revenues and costs. The Group‟s revenue from real estate contracts recognized based on
the percentage of completion method is measured principally on the basis of the ratio of actual costs
incurred to date over the estimated total costs of the project. The total estimated cost of the project is
determined by the Group‟s engineers and technical staff. At each financial reporting date, these
estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions, when necessary.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are required to
be carried at fair value, which requires the use of accounting estimates and judgment. While
significant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence
(i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates and volatility rates), the timing and amount of changes in
fair value would differ with the valuation methodology used. Any change in the fair value of these
financial assets and financial liabilities would directly affect consolidated profit and loss and
consolidated equity.
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these
models is taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity
and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated financial instruments.
Legal Contingencies and Regulatory Assessments. The Group is involved in various legal
proceedings and regulatory assessments. The Group has developed estimates of probable costs for
the resolution of possible claims in consultation with the external counsels handling the Group‟s
defense for various legal proceedings and regulatory assessments and is based upon an analysis of
potential results.
The Group, in consultation with its external legal counsel, does not believe that these proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements. However, it is possible that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or the
effectiveness of management‟s strategies relating to these proceedings.
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4. Operating Segment Information
Operating segments are components of the Group that engage in business activities from which
they may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group‟s chief operating decision-maker (the BOD) to make decisions about how resources are to
be allocated to the segment and assess their performances, and for which discrete financial
information is available.
The Group‟s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets.
The Group conducts majority of its business activities in the following areas:





Power generation– power generation subsidiaries under First Gen
Real estate development – residential and commercial real estate development and leasing of
Rockwell Land and FPRC, and sale of industrial lots and ready-built factories by FPIP. Real
estate segment was not a separate reportable segment in 2011.
Manufacturing – manufacturing subsidiaries under First Philec
Others - investment holdings, oil transporting company, construction, securities transfer
services and financing

Segment income is evaluated based on net income and is measured consistently with net income
in the consolidated statements of income. Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment
performance include transfers between business segments. The transfers are accounted for at
competitive market prices charged to unrelated customers for similar products. Such transfers are
eliminated in consolidation.
The operations of these business segments are in the Philippines. Substantially all of the segment
revenues of FGP and FGPC are derived from Meralco, the sole customer of FGP and FGPC;
while close to 44.0% of EDC‟s total revenues are derived from existing long-term Power
Purchase Agreements (PPA) with National Power Corporation (NPC).
Financial information about the business segments follows:
2014

Revenue:
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Equity in net earnings
of associates and joint venture
Total revenue
Costs and expenses
Finance income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange
gain/(loss)

Real Estate
Development

Investment
Holdings,
Construction,
and Others

Eliminations

Consolidated

Power
Generation

Manufacturing

63,122
-

1,564
-

5,938

3,879
2,387

(2,387)

74,503
-

63,122

1,564

70
6,008

9
6,275

(2,387)

79
74,582

(45,859)
208
(5,472)

(1,857)
59
(50)

(4,865)
824
(450)

(6,377)
69
(447)

2,045
66

(56,913)
1,160
(6,353)

(188)

9

(1)

3

-

(176)
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Other income (loss)
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income tax
Net Income (loss)

3,068
14,880
(2,715)
12,165

(49)
(323)
(26)
(349)

219
1,735
(411)
1,324

1,016
539
(197)
342

(851)
(1,129)
12
(1,116)

3,403
15,703
(3,337)
12,366

2013
Power
Generation

Manufacturing

Real Estate
Development

Investment
Holdings,
Construction,
and Others

59,274

1,254

4,997

2,253

-

67,778

-

-

967

(967)

-

-

-

75

9

-

83

59,274

1,254

5,072

3,228

(967)

67,861

(44,516)
298
(4,562)

(1,643)
2
(64)

(4,234)
694
(237)

(3,160)
123
(518)

795
172

(52,758)
1,117
(5,209)

(1,044)
9,450
(2,066)
7,384

22
52
(377)
(50)
(427)

(1)
198
1,492
(376)
1,116

10
4,098
3,781
(230)
3,551

(3,824)
(3,824)
(20)
(3,844)

(1,013)
623
10,522
(2,742)
7,780

Eliminations

Consolidated

Revenue:
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Equity in net earnings
of associates and joint venture
Total revenue
Costs and expenses
Finance income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange
gain/(loss)
Other income (loss)
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income tax
Net Income (loss)

-465. Subsidiaries and Significant Acquisitions
The accompanying consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of FPH and the following subsidiaries.
Details of the Group‟s subsidiaries as at September 30, 2014 and 2013 are set out below.
Subsidiaries
Power Generation
First Gen Corporation (First Gen)
First Gen Renewables, Inc.
Unified Holdings Corporation (Unified)
AlliedGen Power Corporation
First Gen Luzon Power Corporation.
First Gen Visayas Hydro Power Corporation (FG Visayas)
First Gen Mindanao Hydro Power Corporation (FG Mindanao)
First Gen Ecopower Solutions, Inc. (formerly First Gen Geothermal Power Corporation)
First Gen Energy Solutions, Inc.
First Gen Premier Energy Corporation
First Gen Prime Energy Corporation
First Gen Visayas Energy Corporation
FG Bukidnon Power Corp. (FG Bukidnon) 1
Northern Terracotta Power Corporation (Northern Terracotta)
Blue Vulcan Holdings Corporation2, 41
Prime Meridian Powergen Corporation3
Bluespark Management Limited (Bluespark) [formerly Lisbon Star Management Limited] 7,41
Goldsilk Holdings Corporation (Goldsilk)[formerly Lisbon Star Philippines Holdings, Inc.] 7,41
Dualcore Holdings, Inc.(Dualcore)[formerly BG Consolidated Holdings (Philippines), Inc.] 7,41
Onecore Holdings, Inc. (Onecore) [formerly BG Philippines Holdings, Inc.] 7,41
FG Mindanao Renewables Corp. (FMRC)8, 15
FGen Northern Mindanao Holdings, Inc. (FNMHI)9, 15
First Gas Holdings Corporation (FGHC) 7
FGP Corp. (FGP) 4, 7
First NatGas Power Corporation (FNPC) 5, 7
First Gas Power Corporation (FGPC) 6, 7
First Gas Pipeline Corporation6, 7
FG Land Corporation6, 7
FGen Tagoloan Hydro Corporation (FG Tagoloan)10, 16
FGen Tumalaong Hydro Corporation (FG Tumalaong)11, 16
FGen Puyo Hydro Corporation (FG Puyo)12, 17
FGen Bubunawan Hydro Corporation (FG Bubunawan)13, 17

Place of incorporation
and operation
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
British Virgin Islands
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

2013
2014
Percentage of ownership held by the Group
Direct
Direct
Indirect
66.24
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

66.25
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Indirect
–
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
–
–
–
–
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Subsidiaries
FGen Cabadbaran Hydro Corporation (FG Cabadbaran)14, 17
FGEN LNG Corporation (FGEN LNG) 18
First Gen LNG Holdings Corporation (LNG Holdings) 19
First Gen Meridian Holdings, Inc. (FGEN Meridian) 19
Prime Terracota Holdings Corporation (Prime Terracota) 20
First Gen Hydro Power Corporation (FG Hydro) 20,21
Red Vulcan
Energy Development Corporation (EDC)
EDC Drillco Corporation
EDC Geothermal Corp (EGC)
Green Core Geothermal Inc. (GCGI)
Bac-Man Geothermal Inc. (BGI)
Unified Leyte Geothermal Energy Inc. (ULGEI)
Southern Negros Geothermal, Inc. (SNGI)
EDC Mindanao Geothermal, Inc. (EMGI)
Bac-Man Energy Development Corporation (BEDC)
Kayabon Geothermal Inc. (KGI)
EDC Wind Energy Holdings, Inc.
EDC Burgos Wind Power Corporation (EBWPC)
EDC Chile Limitada
EDC Holdings International Limited (EHIL) 22
Energy Development Corporation Hong Kong Limited (EDC HKL) 23
EDC Pagudpud Wind Power Corporation (EPWPC)
EDC Chile Holdings SPA 24,29
EDC Geotermica Chile24,29
EDC Peru Holdings S.A.C.25,29
EDC Geotermica Peru S.A.C.25,29
EDC Quellaapacheta26,29
PT EDC Indonesia27,29
PT EDC Panas Bumi Indonesia27,29
EDC Geotermica Del Sur S.A.C. 28,29
EDC Energia Azul S.A.C. 28,29
EDC Energía Perú S.A.C. 28,29
Geothermica Crucero Peru S.A.C.28,29
Geothermica Tutupaca Norte Peru S.A.C.28,29
Geothermica Loriscota Peru S.A.C.28,29
EDC Energía Geotérmica S.A.C. 28,29
EDC Progreso Geotérmico Perú S.A.C. 28,29

Place of incorporation
and operation
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Santiago, Chile
British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong
Philippines
Santiago, Chile
Santiago, Chile
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Jakarta Pusat, Indonesia
Jakarta Pusat, Indonesia
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru
Lima, Peru

2013
2014
Percentage of ownership held by the Group
Direct
Direct
Indirect
–
–
100.00
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
–
73.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
60.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
70.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
42.00
–
–
42.00
–
–
42.00
–
–
100.00
–
–
100.00

Indirect
–
–
–
–
45.00
100.00
100.00
60.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
70.00
100.00
100.00
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
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Subsidiaries
EDC Energía Renovable Perú S.A.C. 28,29
Batangas Cogeneration Corporation (Batangas Cogen)30
Manufacturing
First Philippine Electric Corporation (First Philec)
First Electro Dynamics Corporation (FEDCOR)
First Philippine Power Systems, Inc. (FPPSI)
First Philec Manufacturing Technologies Corporation (FPMTC)
First PV Ventures Corporation
First Philec Solar Solutions Corporation31
Cleantech Energy Holdings PTE, Ltd.
Philippine Electric Corporation (PHILEC)
First Philec Solar Corporation
First Philec Nexolon Corporation 32
Real Estate Development
First Philippine Realty Development Corporation (FPRDC)
First Philippine Realty Corporation (FPRC)
First Philippine Properties Corporation (FPPC)
First Philippine Development Corp. (FPDC)
FPH Land Venture, Inc. 36
First Philippine Properties Corp.
FPHC Realty and Development Corporation (FPHC Realty)
Rockwell Land Corporation (Rockwell Land)
Rockwell Integrated Property Services, Inc.
Rockwell Development Corporation33
Rockwell Primaries Development Corporation (formerly, Rockwell Homes, Inc.)
Rockwell Hotels & Leisure Management Corporation33
Stonewell Property Development Corporation
Primaries Properties Sales Specialist Inc.
Rockwell Leisure Club, Inc. (RLCI) 34
First Philippine Industrial Park, Inc. (FPIP)
FPIP Property Developers and Management Corporation
FPIP Utilities, Inc
Terraprime, Inc. (Terraprime) 35
Grand Batangas Resort Development, Inc.37
First Sumiden Realty, Inc. (FSRI)38
Construction
First Balfour, Inc. (First Balfour)
Therma Prime Wells Services, Inc. (Therma Prime)

Place of incorporation
and operation
Lima, Peru
Philippines

2013
2014
Percentage of ownership held by the Group
Direct
Direct
Indirect
–
–
100.00
60.00
60.00
–

Indirect
–
–

Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

100.00
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
99.20
74.54
70.00

100.00
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
99.20
74.54
70.00

Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines

100.00
100.00
100.00
–
–
100.00
98.00
86.80
–
–
–
–
–
–
70.00
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
100.00
100.00
–
–
–
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
75.00
–
100.00
100.00
88.90
85.00
60.00

100.00
100.00
100.00
–
–
100.00
98.00
86.80
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
70.00
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
100.00
–
–
–
–
100.00
–
100.00
–
100.00
100.00
69.00
–
100.00
100.00
100.00
85.00
60.00

Philippines
Philippines

100.00
–

–
100.00

100.00
–

–
100.00
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Subsidiaries
Others
First Philippine Utilities Corporation (FPUC, formerly First Philippine Union Fenosa, Inc.)
Securities Transfer Services, Inc.
FPH Capital Resources, Inc. (FCRI, formerly First Philippine Lending Corporation 39
FPH Land Ventures Inc.
FGHC International40
FPH Fund40
FPH Ventures40
First Philippine Industrial Corporation (FPIC)
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Place of incorporation
and operation
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Philippines
Cayman, Island
Cayman, Island
Cayman, Island
Philippines

2013
2014
Percentage of ownership held by the Group
Direct
Direct
Indirect
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
–
60.00

–
–
–
–
–
–
100.00
–

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
–
60.00

Through FGRI
On April 6, 2011, Blue Vulcan was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 8, 2011, Prime Meridian was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
Through Unified
Through AlliedGen
Through FGHC
On May 30, 2012, First Gen, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Blue Vulcan, acquired from BGAPH the entire outstanding capital stock of Bluespark. Bluespark’s wholly owned
subsidiaries, namely: Goldsilk, Dualcore and Onecore own 40% of the outstanding capital stock of FGHC and subsidiaries (collectively referred to as First Gas Group). Following the
acquisition of Bluespark, FGEN now beneficially owns 100% of First Gas Group through its intermediate holding companies.
On April 27, 2012, FMRC was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On April 11, 2012, FNMHI was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 23, 2012, FG Tagoloan was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 17, 2012, FG Tumalaong was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 17, 2012, FG Puyo was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 17, 2012, FG Bubunawan was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On August 23, 2012, FG Cabadbaran was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
Through FG Mindanao
Through FMRC
Through FNMHI
On May 22, 2013, FGEN LNG was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On December 27, 2013, LNG Holdings and FGEN Meridian was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC
As a result of the adoption of PFRS 10 effective January 1, 2013 (see Note 2). On May 20, 2014, First Gen purchased 31,000,000 Series “B” voting preferred shares of Prime Terracota
owned by the Lopez Inc. Retirement Fund (LIRF). As of September 30, 2014, First Gen's direct voting interest in Prime Terracota increased from 45.0% to 73.4% and its effective voting
interest in EDC likewise increased from 33.6% to 50.7% through Prime Terracota.

Indirect
–
–
–
–
–
–
100.00
–
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22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

As a result of the adoption of PFRS 10 effective January 1, 2013 (see Note 2); As of December 31, 2013, direct voting interest by First Gen in FG Hydro is 40% while its effective economic
interest is 69.96% through Prime Terracota.
Incorporated on August 17, 2011 in British Virgin Islands
Incorporated on November 22, 2011 in Hong Kong
Through EHIL and was incorporated on January 13, 2012 in Santiago,Chile
Through EHIL and was incorporated on January 19, 2012 in Lima, Peru
Through EHIL and was incorporated on July 17, 2012 in Lima, Peru
Through EHIL and was incorporated on July 9, 2012 in Jakarta Pusat, Indonesia
Through EHIL and was incorporated on 2013 in Lima, Peru
Subsidiary of EDC HKL
Under liquidation.
On June 24, 2010, First Philec Solar Solutions Corporation was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
On January 26, 2011, FPNC was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC. It is a subsidiary of First PV.
On June 20, 2013, Rockwell Development Corporation and Rockwell Hotels & Leisure Management Corporation were incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC. These are
subsidiaries of Rockwell Land.
As a result of the adoption of PFRS 10 effective January 1, 2013 (see Note 2), RLCI was consolidated with Rockwell Land Corporation.
On May 5, 2011, Terraprime was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC. It is a subsidiary of FPH Land Ventures Inc.
On March 22, 2013, FPH Land Venture was incorporated and registered with Philippine SEC. It is a subsidiary of FPDC.
On March 9, 2011, Grand Batangas Resort Development, Inc. was incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.
Through First Philec.
Lending company.
Special-purpose entities of FPH
On June 17, 2014, the Philippine SEC approved the Plan and Articles of Merger between FGRI and Bluespark that was executed on April 29, 204. As a result of the merger, FGRI becomes
the surviving corporation and is now 99.1% effectively owned by Blue Vulcan while the remaining 0.9% is still owned by First Gen. FGRI now effectively owns 40.0% voting and economic
interest in Santa Rita and San Lorenzo Plants. Prior to the merger, FGRI was a wholly-owned subsidiary of First Gen.
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6. Investments in Equity Securities
The Group classified its remaining investment in MERALCO shares to investment in equity
securities in accordance to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
Accordingly, the remaining investment in MERALCO is measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position and any fair value changes are recognized directly in equity. As of
September 30, 2014, MERALCO‟s price per share reached P
=253.8 which translated to a fair value of
=11,264 million.
P
On January 20, 2012, the Group transferred through the PSE its 2.66% interest or equivalent to 30
million shares, in MERALCO to Beacon Electric. The total consideration for the sale amounted to
=8,850 million resulting in a gain on sale of P
P
=3,339 million.
Under the Investment and Cooperation Agreement entered on March 12, 2009 (“ICA” and as
subsequently amended on November 20, 2009 and March 30, 2010) by the Parent Company, and
Lopez, Inc. (collectively as “Lopez Group”) with Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company,
PLDT Communications and Energy Ventures, Inc., Metro Pacific Investments Corporation and
Beacon Electric Asset Holdings, Inc. (Beacon Electric) (collectively as “PLDT Group”), on June 28,
2012, the Parent Company received 1.84 billion ROCKWELL shares from Beacon Electric with
respect to MERALCO shares it had previously transferred to PLDT Group after these ROCKWELL
shares are duly declared by MERALCO as property dividends.

7. Earnings Per Share Computation
The following table presents information necessary to compute earnings per share as of September
30, 2014 and 2013:
2014

2013

(In Millions, Except Number of Shares and Per Share Data)

Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent
Less dividends on preferred shares
(a) Net income available to common shares
Number of shares:
Common shares outstanding
at beginning of year
Effect of common share issuances and buyback
during the period
(b) Adjusted weighted average number
of common shares outstanding – basic
Effect of dilutive potential common shares
(c) Adjusted weighted average number
of common shares outstanding – diluted
EPS:
Basic (a/b)

P
=4,738
–
P
=4,032

=3,475
P
(94)
=3,381
P

552,537,583

549,985,762

177,021

2,058,212

552,714,604
908,711

552,043,974
3,050,832

553,623,315

555,094,806

P
=8.57

=6.13
P
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2014

2013

(In Millions, Except Number of Shares and Per Share Data)

Diluted (a/c)

8.56

6.09

8. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Group‟s principal financial liabilities consist of loans payable, bonds payable and long-term debt.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise financing for the Group‟s growth and
operations. The Group has other various financial instruments such as cash equivalents, short-term
investments, trade and other receivables, investments in equity securities, trade payables and other
current liabilities which arise directly from its operations. The Group also enters into derivative and
hedging transactions, primarily interest rate swaps, cross-currency swap and foreign currency
forwards, as needed, for the sole purpose of managing the relevant financial risks that are associated
with the Group‟s borrowing activities and as required by the lenders in certain cases.
The Group has an Enterprise-wide Risk Management Program which aims to identify risks based on
the likelihood of occurrence and impact to the business, formulate risk management strategies, assess
risk management capabilities and continuously monitor the risk management efforts. The main
financial risks arising from the Group‟s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, credit concentration risk, and equity price risk. The BOD reviews and
approves policies for managing each of these risks as summarized below. The Group‟s accounting
policies in relation to derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 2.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group‟s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group‟s
long-term debts with floating interest rates. The Group policy is to manage interest cost through a mix
of fixed and variable rate debt. On a regular basis, the Finance team of the Group monitors the
interest rate exposure and presents it to management by way of a compliance report. To manage the
exposure to floating interest rates in a cost-efficient manner, the Group may consider prepayment,
refinancing, or entering into derivative instruments as deemed necessary and feasible.
As at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, approximately 71% and 57% of the Group‟s
borrowings are subject to fixed interest rate.
Interest Rate Risk Table. The following table set out the carrying amounts, by maturity, of the
Group‟s financial instruments that are subject to interest rate risk as at September 30, 2014 and
December 31 2013:

Interest Rates

September 30, 2014
More than More than
1 Year
3 Years
Within
up to
up to More than
1 Year
3 Years
5 Years
5 Years
(In Millions)

Total
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September 30, 2014
More than More than
1 Year
3 Years
Within
up to
up to More than
1 Year
3 Years
5 Years
5 Years
(In Millions)

Interest Rates
Floating Rate
Parent Company
=4,800 million FRCNs
P

1.5% + 6 months PDST F
rate or BSP overnight
rate, whichever is
higher

P
= 624

P
=2,504

P
= 1,058

P
=–

P
= 4,186

4.11%
2.57%
4.51%
4.50%
2.03%

242
747
1,250
361
–

591
2,173
3,350
1,211
180

280
2,716
1,075
914
3,267

–
7,708
–
1,254
–

1,113
13,344
5,675
3,740
3,447

2.00% – 2.06%

785

5,105

–

–

5,890

0.81%
4.00%
4.00%

–
–
–

4,039
1,400
1,300

–
–
–

–
–
–

4,039
1,400
1,300

50

75

–

–

125

–

–

–

926

926

December 31, 2013
More than More than
1 Year
3 Years
Within
up to
up to
1 Year
3 Years
5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

Power Generation Companies
Uncovered Facility
Term Loan Facility
Staple Financing
PNB and Allied Bank Loan
US$80M Term loan
US$175M Refinanced
Syndicated Term loan
EDC Bridge Loans
$90.0 million
=1.4 billion
P
=1.3 billion
P
Manufacturing Companies
=300 million Maybank
P
5-year loan
First Philec‟s $20.6 million
Philippine National Bank
(PNB) Loan

Total

3% + 3 months PDST F
3 months LIBOR +
3.50%

Interest Rates

(In Millions)
Floating Rate
Parent Company
=4,800 million FRCNs
P

1.5% + 6 months PDST
F rate or BSP
overnight rate,
whichever is higher

Power Generation Companies
Uncovered Facility
3.61%

Term Loan Facility
Staple Financing
PNB and Allied Bank Loan
US$80.0 million
US$175M Refinanced
Syndicated Term Loan
Manufacturing Companies

2.59%
2.95%
4.5%
2.04%
2.00% - 2.06%

=240
P

=2,016
P

=2,064
P

=–
P

=4,320
P

246

558

494

–

1,298

605
1,200
340
142

2,016
3,000
1,190
178

2,553
2,075
892
3,232

8,331
1,488
–

13,505
6,275
3,910
3,552

777

1,554

3,884

–

6,215

- 54 =300 million Maybank
P
5-year loan
First Philec‟s $20.6 million
Philippine National Bank
(PNB) Loan

3% + 3 months PDST
F

50

100

13

–

163

3 months LIBOR +
3.50%

–

–

–

963

963

Floating interest rates on financial instruments are repriced semi-annually on each interest payment
date. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates for
the six months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group‟s income before income tax and equity (through the impact of floating rate borrowings,
derivative assets and liabilities of the Group):
Increase (Decrease)
in Basis Points
September 30, 2014
U.S. Dollar
Philippine Peso
September 30, 2013
U.S. Dollar
Philippine Peso

Increase (Decrease)
on Income Before Increase (Decrease)
Income Tax
on Equity

+100
-100
+100
-100

($4.47 million)
4.47 million
(1.02 million)
1.02 million

($2.43 million)
(5.60 million)
–
–

+100
-100
+100
-100

($2.83 million)
2.83 million
(0.86 million)
0.86 million

$13.95 million
(11.45 million)
–
–

The effect of changes in interest rates in equity pertains to the fair valuation of derivatives designated
as cash flows hedges and is exclusive of the impact of changes affecting First Gen Group‟s unaudited
interim consolidated statements of income.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Group‟s exposure to foreign currency risk arises as the functional currency of First Gen Corp.
and certain subsidiaries, the U.S. dollar, is not the local currency in its country of operations. Certain
financial assets and liabilities as well as some costs and expenses are denominated in various foreign
currencies. To manage the foreign currency risk, First Gen Group may consider entering into
derivative transactions, as necessary. FGPC and FGP also entered into several foreign currency
contracts to hedge their foreign exchange exposure from their Euro-denominated payables. In the
case of EDC, it entered into non-deliverable cross-currency swaps to hedge its foreign currency risk
exposure on its U.S. dollar denominated loans in 2012.
For EDC, its exposure to foreign currency risk is mitigated to some degree by some provisions of its
GRESC‟s, SSA‟s and PPA‟s. The service contracts allow full cost recovery while its sales contracts
include billing adjustments covering the movements in Philippine peso and the U.S. dollar rates, U.S.
Price and Consumer Indices, and other inflation factors.

- 55 -

The following table sets out the foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities
(translated into U.S. dollar) as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 that may affect the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group (thru First Gen Group)
(amounts in millions):

Philippine
PesoEurodenominated denominated
Balances
Balance

September 30, 2014
Original Currency
Japanese
Chilean
YenPeso
denominated
denominated
Balance
Balance

New Zealand
dollar
denominated
Balance

Equivalent
U.S. Dollar
Balances1

NZ$–
–
–
–
–
–

$411.8
148.9
2.7
563.4
7.0
570.4

Liabilities at amortized cost:
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses
6,663.5
6.9
14.1
–
0.6
Long-term debts
43,596.9
–
–
–
–
Total financial liabilities
50,260.4
6.9
14.1
–
0.6
Net financial liabilities (assets)
P
= 29,254.3
€5.4
¥14.1
(CHP
= 338.4)
NZ$0.6
1
US$1=P
=44.875, US$1=€0.730, US$1=¥101.135, US$1= SEK6.709 and US$1 = NZD1.137 as of September 30, 2014

191.5
971.5
1,163.0
$592.6

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Long-term receivables
AFS financial assets
Total financial assets

P
= 13,886.7
6,683.5
120.0
20,690.2
315.9
21,006.1

€1.5
–
–
1.5
–
1.5

¥–
–
–
–
–
–

CHP
=338.4
–
–
338.4
–
338.4

December 31, 2013 (Audited)
Original Currency

Financial Assets
Loans and
receivables:
Cash and cash
equivalents
Receivables
Long-term
receivables

Philippine
Pesodenominated
Balances

Eurodenominated
Balance

Japanese
Yendenominated
Balance

Chilean
Peso
denominated
Balance

New Zealand
dollar
denominated
Balance

Sweden
kroner
denominated
Balance

Great Britain
Pounddenominated
Balance

Equivalent
U.S. Dollar
Balances1

=16,609.2
P
4,826.0

€–
–

¥–
–

CHP
=96.0
–

NZ$–
–

SEK–
–

£–
–

$374.1
108.7

15.1
21,450.3
347.8

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
96.0
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

0.3
483.1
7.8

AFS financial assets
Total financial
assets
21,798.1
–
–
96.0
–
–
–
490.9
Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at
amortized cost:
Accounts payable
and accrued
expenses
6,485.4
6.5
13.8
–
0.6
1.3
0.1
156.0
Dividends payable
896.9
–
–
–
–
–
–
20.2
Long-term debts
41,973.7
–
–
–
–
–
–
945.5
Total financial
liabilities
49,356.0
6.5
13.8
–
0.6
1.3
0.1
1,121.7
Net financial
liabilities (assets)
=27,557.9
P
€6.5
¥13.8
(CHP
=96.0)
NZ$0.6
SEK1.3
£0.1
$630.8
1
US$1=P
=44.395, US$1=€0.73, US$1=¥104.73, US$1=CHP
=3.75, US$1= NZ1.226, US$1= SEK6.538 and US$1= £0.61 as of December 31, 2013

The following table sets out, for the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and the year ended
December 31, 2013, the impact of the range of reasonably possible movement in the U.S. dollar,
European Euro, Japanese Yen, Great Britain Pound, New Zealand Dollars and Philippine Peso
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before income tax and equity (due to changes in the revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities):

Philippine Peso
European Euro
Japanese Yen
Chilean Peso
New Zealand Dollar

Philippine Peso
European Euro
Japanese Yen
Sweden Kroner
New Zealand Dollar
Chilean Peso
Great Britain Pound

September 30, 2014
Foreign Currency Increase (Decrease)
Appreciates on Income Before Increase (Decrease)
(Depreciates) By
Income Tax
on Equity
(Amounts in Millions)
2%
$0.36
($13.14)
(2%)
(0.37)
13.67
3%
(0.26)
1.99
(3%)
0.26
(1.87)
10%
(3.06)
–
(10%)
3.74
–
10%
(9.13)
–
(10%)
11.16
–
10%
(0.04)
–
(10%)
0.05
–
December 31, 2013 (Audited)
Foreign Currency Increase (Decrease)
Appreciates
on Income Before Increase (Decrease)
(Depreciates) By
Income Tax
on Equity
(Amounts in Millions)
2%
$0.87
($13.04)
(2%)
(0.90)
13.60
3%
(0.37)
–
(3%)
0.37
–
10%
(0.01)
–
(10%)
0.01
–
10%
(0.02)
–
(10%)
0.02
–
10%
(0.05)
–
(10%)
0.06
–
10%
(2.33)
–
(10%)
2.84
–
10%
(0.02)
–
(10%)
0.03
–

The effect of changes in foreign currency rates in equity pertains to the fair valuation of the
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges and is exclusive of the impact of changes affecting the
Group‟s unaudited interim consolidated statements of income.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur losses from customers, clients or counterparties that
fail to discharge their contracted obligations. The Group manages credit risk by setting limits on the
amount of risk the Group is willing to accept for individual counterparties and by monitoring
exposures in relation to such limits.
As a policy, the Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties and/or transacts only
with institutions and/or banks which have demonstrated financial soundness. Credit verification
procedures for customers on credit terms are done. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
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an ongoing basis and the level of the allowance account is reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure
that the Group‟s exposure to credit risk is not significant. With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets of the Group, which comprise mostly of cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments and trade and other receivables, the Group‟s exposure to credit risk arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
Credit Risk Exposure. The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
2013

2014
(In Millions)

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents*
Short-term investments
Trade and other receivables:
Trade
Others
Special deposits and funds
Other current assets
Total credit exposure

P
=52,787
2,721

=52,754
P
2,675

26,743
2,390
258
35
P
=84,934

23,366
3,244
251
35
=82,325
P

*Excluding the Group’s cash on hand amounting to =
P 1.5 million in 2014 and =
P 1 million 2013. The Group’s deposit
accounts in certain banks are covered by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance coverage.

Aging Analysis of Financial Assets. The following tables show the Group‟s aging analysis of past due
but not impaired financial assets as at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.
2014

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Trade and other
receivables
Special deposits and
funds
Other current assets
Financial asset at FVPL Derivative asset
Financial asset accounted
for as cash flow hedge
– Derivative asset

Neither
Past Due
nor
Impaired

< 30
Days

30–60
Days

P
=52,788
2,721

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

24,339

457

778

258
35

–
–

508

267
P
=80,916

Past Due but not Impaired
61–90
91–120
Days
Days
(In Millions)

> 120
Days

Total

Impaired

Total

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=–
–

P
=52,788
2,721

328

737

2,211

4,511

283

29,133

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

258
35

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

508

–
P
=457

–
P
=778

–
P
=328

–
P
=737

–
P
=2,211

–
P
=4,511

–
P
=283

267
P
=85,710

> 120
Days

Total

Impaired

Total

2013

Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Trade and other
receivables

Neither
Past Due
nor
Impaired

< 30
Days

30–60
Days

=52,754
P
2,675

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

P–
=
–

=52,754
P
2,675

24,259

343

203

49

14

1,742

2,351

283

26,893

Past Due but not Impaired
61–90
91–120
Days
Days
(In Millions)
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Special deposits and
funds
Other current assets
Financial asset at FVPL Derivative asset
Financial asset accounted
for as cash flow hedge
– Derivative asset

Neither
Past Due
nor
Impaired

< 30
Days

30–60
Days

251
35

–
–

–
–

–
–

8

–

–

192
=80,174
P

–
=343
P

–
=203
P

Past Due but not Impaired
61–90
91–120
Days
Days
(In Millions)

> 120
Days

Total

Impaired

Total

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

251
35

–

–

–

–

–

8

–
=49
P

–
=14
P

–
=1,742
P

–
=2,351
P

–
=283
P

192
=82,808
P

Credit Quality of Neither Past Due Nor Impaired Financial Assets. The payment history of the
counter parties and their ability to settle their obligations are considered in evaluating credit quality.
Financial assets are classified as high grade if the counterparties are not expected to default in settling
their obligations, thus, credit exposure is minimal. These counterparties normally include banks,
related parties and customers who pay on or before due date. Financial assets are classified as
standard grade if the counterparties settle their obligations to the Group with tolerable delays. Low
grade accounts are accounts which have probability of impairment based on historical trend. These
accounts show propensity of default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and extended
payment terms.
As at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the financial assets categorized as neither past due
nor impaired are viewed by management as high grade.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The Group, through First Gen‟s operating subsidiaries namely, FGP and FGPC, earns a substantial
portion of its revenues from Meralco. Meralco is committed to pay for the capacity and energy
generated by the San Lorenzo and Santa Rita power plants under the existing long-term PPAs which
are due to expire in September 2027 and August 2025, respectively. While the PPAs provide for the
mechanisms by which certain costs and obligations including fuel costs, among others, are passedthrough to Meralco or are otherwise recoverable from Meralco, it is the intention of First Gen, FGP
and FGPC to ensure that the pass-through mechanisms, as provided for in their respective PPAs, are
followed.
EDC‟s geothermal and power generation businesses trade with NPC as its major customer. Any
failure on the part of NPC to pay its obligations to EDC would significantly affect EDC‟s business
operations.
Under the current regulatory regime, the generation rates charged by FGP and FGPC to Meralco are
not subject to regulations and are complete pass-through charges to Meralco‟s customers.
The Group‟s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparties, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of the receivables from Meralco, in the case of FGP and
FGPC, and the receivables from NPC, in the case of EDC.
The table below shows the risk exposure in respect to credit concentration of the Group as at
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013:
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Trade receivables from Meralco
Trade receivables from NPC
Total credit concentration risk
Total receivables
Credit concentration percentage

September 30,
2014
P
=7,038
3,468
P
=10,506
P
=29,133
36.06%

December 31,
2013
(Audited)
=10,967
P
1,856
=12,823
P
=26,610
P
48.19%

Liquidity Risk
The Group‟s exposure to liquidity risk refers to lack of funding needed to finance its growth and
capital expenditures, service its maturing loan obligations in a timely fashion, and meet its working
capital requirements. To manage this exposure, the Group maintains internally generated funds and
prudently manages the proceeds obtained from fundraising in the debt and equity markets. On a
regular basis, the Group‟s Treasury Department monitors the available cash balances. The Group
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed sufficient to finance the operations.
In addition, the Group has short-term investments and has available credit lines with certain banking
institutions. FGP and FGPC, in particular, maintain a Debt Service Revenue Account to sustain the
debt service requirements for the next payment period. As part of its liquidity risk management, the
Group regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. It also continuously assesses the
financial market conditions for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities.
Equity Price Risk
The Group‟s quoted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties
about future values of the investment in equity securities. The Group manages the equity price risk
through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. The Group‟s
BOD reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group‟s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business, comply with its financial loan
covenants and maximize shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in business
and economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the period ended September 30, 2014 and
December 31 2013.
The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by equity
attributable to equity holders of the Parent (excluding unrealized fair value gains on investment in
equity securities, cumulative translation adjustments, and equity reserve). The Group‟s practice is to
keep the debt-to-equity ratio not more than 2.50:1.
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September 30,
2014

December 31,
2013
(In Millions)

P
=–
157,303
P
=157,303

=–
P
143,885
=143,885
P

Equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent

68,551

74,594

Debt-to-equity ratio

2.29:1

1.93:1

Bonds payable
Long-term debt plus current portion
Total debt

The Parent Company and certain of its subsidiaries are obligated to perform certain covenants with
respect to maintaining specified debt-to-equity and minimum debt-service-coverage ratios, as set
forth in their respective agreements with the creditors.

9. Financial Instruments
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group‟s
financial instruments that are carried in the unaudited consolidated financial statements as of
September 30, 2014 and in the audited financial statements as of December 31, 2013.
September 30, 2014
Carrying Value
Fair Value

December 31, 2013
Carrying Value
Fair Value

(In Millions)

Financial Assets
Derivative assets accounted for as cash flow
hedges
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
Equity securities
AFS Financial assets:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Proprietary membership
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost:
Bonds payable, including current portion
Long-term debt, including current portion
Derivative liabilities accounted for as
cash flow hedges
Total Financial Liabilities

P
= 267

P
= 267

=192
P

=192
P

508
2
510

508
2
510

8
2
10

8
2
10

11,264
–
52
11,316
P
= 12,093

11,264
–
52
11,316
P
= 12,093

11,827
343
85
12,275
=12,477
P

11,827
343
85
12,275
=12,477
P

P
=–
157,303
157,303

P
=–
159,083
159,083

=–
P
143,885
143,885

=–
P
145,513
145,513

1,304
P
= 158,607

1,304
P
=160,387

1,535
=145,420
P

1,535
=147,048
P

Determination of Fair Value. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments,
trade and other receivables, restricted cash deposits, loans payable, trade payables, and other current
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liabilities approximate the carrying amounts at financial reporting date due to the short-term nature of
the accounts.
The fair values of investments in equity securities and FVPL financial assets are based on quoted
market prices as at financial reporting date. For equity instruments that are not quoted, the
investments are carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses due to the unpredictable nature of
future cash flows and the lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value.
AFS financial assets
Fair values of quoted debt and equity securities are based on quoted market prices. For equity
instruments that are not quoted, the investments are carried at cost less allowance for impairment
losses due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable methods of arriving
at a reliable fair value.
FGP and FGPC long-term debts
The fair values of long-term debts were computed by discounting the instruments‟ expected future
cash flows using the prevailing credit adjusted U.S. dollar interest rates ranging from 0.2373% to
2.3868% and 0.2543% to 2.9280% as of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
First Gen and FNPC‟s Long-term Debts
The fair values of the Parent Company U.S. dollar-denominated long-term debts were computed by
discounting the instruments‟ expected future cash flows using the prevailing credit adjusted U.S.
dollar interest rates on September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 ranging from 0.029% to 2.649%
and 0.066% to 3.291%, respectively.
Long-term debts of Red Vulcan, EDC and FG Hydro
The fair values for EDC‟s and FG Hydro‟s long-term debts are estimated using the discounted cash
flow methodology with the applicable rates ranging from 1.76% to 6.71% on September 30, 2014 and
1.76% to 7.40% on December 31, 2013. The fair value of Red Vulcan‟s Staple Financing was
computed by discounting the instrument‟s expected future cash flows using the prevailing creditadjusted PDST-F interest rates ranging from 1.91% to 3.51% on September 30, 2014 and 0.42% to
7.40% on December 31, 2013.
Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings of Rockwell Land
The fair values of fixed rate loans were calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at
prevailing credit adjusted PDEx interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 4.9% as of September 30, 2014
and 4.2% to 5.3% as of December 31, 2013.
Installment Payable of Rockwell Land.
The fair value of installment payable were calculated by discounting the expected cash flows at
prevailing credit adjusted PDEx interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 4.9% as of September 30, 2014
and 1.2% to 4.4% as at December 31, 2013.
Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:
 Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
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Level 2: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and



Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.
September 30, 2014
Level 2
Level 3
(In Millions)

Level 1
Financial Assets
Long-term receivables
AFS financial assets:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Derivative assets accounted for
as cash flow hedges
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
Equity securities
Total Financial Assets

P
=–

P
=–

P
=120

P
= 120

11,264
–

–
–

–
–

11,264
–

–

267

–

267

–
2
P
=11,266

508
–
P
=775

–
–
P
=120

508
2
P
=12,161

P
=

P
=1,304

P
=–

P
= 1,304

December 31, 2013
Level 2
Level 3
(In Millions)

Total

Financial Liabilities
Derivative liabilities accounted for as
cash flow hedges

Level 1
Financial Assets
Long-term receivables
AFS financial assets:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Derivative assets accounted for
as cash flow hedges
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
Equity securities
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Derivative liabilities accounted for as
cash flow hedges

Total

=–
P

=–
P

=383
P

=383
P

11,490
343

–
–

–
–

11,490
343

–

192

–

192

–
2
=11,835
P

8
–
=200
P

–
–
=383
P

8
2
=12,418
P

=
P

=1,536
P

=–
P

=1,536
P

As at September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 fair value measurements and there were no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group, through First Gen group, enters into derivative transactions such as interest rate swaps to
hedge its interest rate risks arising from its floating rate borrowings, cross currency swap and foreign
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currency forwards to hedge the foreign exchange risk arising from its loans and payables. These
derivatives (including embedded derivatives) are accounted for either as Derivatives not designated as
accounting hedges or Derivatives designated as accounting hedges.
The table below shows the fair value of the Group‟s (thru First Gen) outstanding derivative financial
instruments, reported as assets or liabilities, together with their notional amounts as of
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (amounts in millions). The notional amount is the basis
upon which changes in the value of derivatives are measured.
September 30, 2014
Derivative Derivative
Notional
Assets Liabilities
Amount
Derivatives Designated as
Accounting Hedges
Freestanding derivatives Interest rate swaps
Cross currency swaps
Derivatives not Designated as
Accounting Hedges
Freestanding derivatives Foreign currency forwards

Total derivatives

$2.15
3.80
5.95

$29.07
–
29.07

$415.48
$65.00

$3.11
1.21
4.32

$34.50
0.09
34.59

$441.03
$65.00

–
$5.95

–
$29.07

–

0.17
$4.49

–
$34.59

$105.60

September 30, 2014
Derivative Derivative
Notional
Assets Liabilities
Amount
Presented as:
Current
Noncurrent
Total derivatives

December 31, 2013 (Audited)
Derivative
Derivative
Notional
Assets
Liabilities
Amount

$0.51
5.44
$5.95

$–
29.07
$29.07

December 31, 2013 (Audited)
Derivative
Derivative
Notional
Assets
Liabilities
Amount
$0.32
4.17
$4.49

$0.01
34.58
$34.59

Derivatives not Designated as Accounting Hedges
The Group‟s (thru First Gen group) derivatives not designated as accounting hedges include
embedded derivatives in First Gen‟s CBs and freestanding derivatives used to economically hedge
certain exposures but were not designated by management as accounting hedges. Such derivatives are
classified as at FVPL with changes in fair value directly taken to consolidated statements of income.
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
These are contractual agreements to buy or sell a foreign currency at an agreed rate on a future
date.
In 2013, EDC entered into a total of 45 currency forward contracts with various counterparty banks.
These contracts include one deliverable and 44 non-deliverable forward contracts. The deliverable
buy JP¥ - sell US$ forward contract has notional amount and forward rate of US$3.0 million and
JP¥91.0 million, respectively. As for the non-deliverable forward contracts, EDC entered into sell
US$ - buy PHP
= transactions with onshore banks and simultaneously entered into buy US$ - sell PHP
=
transactions with offshore banks as an offsetting position. The aggregate notional amount of these
sell PHP
= - buy US$ forward contracts was US$130.0 million while the average forward rate was P
=
43.61.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, EDC recognized $0.3 million gain and nil,
respectively, from fair value changes of these foreign currency forwards contracts. These amounts are
recorded under “Mark-to-market gain (loss) on derivatives - net” in the unaudited interim
consolidated statements of income.
EDC did not enter into any foreign currency forward transaction in 2014.
Foreign Currency Swap Contracts
A foreign currency swap is an agreement to exchange amounts in different currencies based on the
spot rate at trade date and to re-exchange the same currencies at a future date based on an agreed rate.
As of December 31, 2013, EDC has entered into a total of 22 foreign currency swap contracts with
term as follows:

Position
Sell US$ - buy PHP
=

December 31, 2013 (Audited)
Aggregate
notional
Weighted
amount
average
(in millions)
forward rate
$105.6
=44.00
P

For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, EDC recognized nil and P
=4.4 million loss,
respectively, from the fair value changes of these foreign currency swap contracts. These are recorded
under “Mark-to-market gain (loss) on derivatives - net” in the unaudited interim consolidated
statements of income.
EDC did not enter into any foreign currency swap transaction in 2014.
Derivatives Designated as Accounting Hedges
The Group has interest rate swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges for its floating rate loans and
cross-currency swaps and foreign currency forwards accounted for as cash flow hedges of its
Philippine peso and U.S. dollar denominated borrowings and Euro denominated payables,
respectively. Under a cash flow hedge, the effective portion of changes in fair value of the hedging
instrument is recognized as cumulative translation adjustments in other comprehensive income (loss)
until the hedged item affects earnings.
Interest Rate Swaps - FGPC
On November 14, 2008, FGPC entered into eight interest rate swap agreements with the following
hedge providers namely: Société Générale (Singapore Branch), Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank
AG (Hong Kong Branch), Calyon and Standard Chartered Bank. On the same date, FGPC designated
the interest rate swaps as hedges of the cashflow variability in the Covered and Uncovered Facilities,
attributable to the movements in the six-month LIBOR.
Under the four interest rate swap agreements that hedge 100% of the Covered Facility, FGPC pays a
fixed rate of 4.4025% and receives a 6-month U.S. LIBOR on the aggregate amortizing notional
amount of $312.0 million, simultaneous with the interest payments every May and November on the
hedged loan. The notional amounts of the interest rate swaps are amortizing based on the repayment
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schedule of the hedged loan. The interest rate swap agreements have a term of 12 ½ years and will
mature on May 10, 2021 (coinciding with the maturity of the hedged loan).
Under the four interest rate swap agreements that hedge 75% of the Uncovered Facility, FGPC pays a
fixed rate of 4.0625% and receives a 6-month U.S. LIBOR on the aggregate amortizing notional
amount of $141.0 million, simultaneous with the interest payments every May and November on the
hedged loan. The notional amounts of the interest rate swaps are amortizing based on the repayment
schedule of the hedged loan. The interest rate swaps have a term of 8 ½ years and will mature on
May 10, 2017 (coinciding with the maturity of the hedged loan).
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the aggregate negative fair values of the interest
rate swaps that were deferred to “Cumulative translation adjustments” account in the unaudited
interim consolidated statements of financial position amounted to P
=911 million (net of related
deferred tax effect of P
=390 million) and P
=1,070 million (net of related deferred tax effect of
=448 million), respectively.
P
Interest Rate Swap - FGP
In April 2013, FGP entered into two interest rate swap agreements with ING Bank and Standard
Chartered Bank to hedge its floating rate exposure on $80.0 million of its $420.0 million term loan
facility. Under the interest rate swap agreements, FGP pays fixed rate of 1.425% and receives floating
rate of U.S. LIBOR, on a semi-annual basis, simultaneous with the interest payments every June and
December on the hedged loan.
In May 2013, FGP entered into another interest rate swap agreement with RCBC to hedge its floating
rate exposure on another $20.0 million of the $420.0 million term loan facility. Under the interest
rate swap agreement, FGP pays fixed rate of 1.28% and receives floating rate of U.S. LIBOR, on a
semi-annual basis, simultaneous with the interest payment every June and December on the hedged
loan. The notional amounts of interest rate swaps are amortizing based on the repayment schedule of
hedged loan. The interest rate swaps were designated as cash flow hedges and will mature on June
10, 2020.
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the positive fair values of the interest rate swap
that were deferred to “Cumulative translation adjustments” account in the unaudited interim
consolidated statements of financial position amounted P
=67 million (net of related deferred income
tax effect of P
=27 million) and P
=98 million (net of related deferred income tax effect of P
=40 million),
respectively.
There was no ineffective portion recognized in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of
income for the periods ended September 30, 2014 and 2013.
The outstanding aggregate notional amount and the related cumulative mark-to-market gains and
losses of the interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges as of September 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Notional amount

September 30,
2014
P18,645

December 31,
2013
(Audited)
P19,579
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Cumulative mark-to-market losses
Cumulative mark-to-market gains

(1,286)
95

(1,456)
131

The net movements in the fair value of interest rate swaps of FGPC and FGP are as follows:

Fair value at beginning of period
Fair value changes taken into equity during the
period
Fair value changes realized during the period
Fair value at end of period
Deferred tax effect on cash flow hedges
Fair value deferred into equity

September 30,
2014
(P841)

December 31,
2013
(Audited)
(P2,357)

(280)
477
(644)
362
(P282)

P473
625
(1,259)
418
(P841)

Fair value changes during the period, net of deferred income tax, are recorded in the unaudited
interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income and under the “Cumulative translation
adjustments” account in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of financial position. The fair
value change realized during the period was taken into “Interest expense and financing charges”
account in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of income. This pertains to the net
difference between the fixed interest paid/accrued and the floating interest received/accrued on the
interest rate swap agreements as at financial reporting date.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, fair value changes taken to unaudited
interim consolidated statements of income amounted to P478 million.
Cross Currency Swaps - EDC
In 2012 and 2014, EDC entered into 6 and 4 non-deliverable cross-currency swap (NDCCS)
agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $65.0 million and $30.0 million, respectively, to
partially hedge the foreign currency and interest rate risks on its Refinanced Syndicated Term Loan
that is benchmarked against US LIBOR and with flexible interest reset feature that allows EDC to
select what interest reset frequency to apply (i.e., monthly, quarterly, or semi-annually). As it is
EDC‟s intention to reprice the interest rate on the hedged loan quarterly, EDC utilizes NDCCS with
quarterly interest payments and receipts.
Under the NDCCS agreements, EDC receives floating US$ interest based on 3-month US LIBOR
plus 175 basis points and pays fixed peso interest. On specified dates, EDC also receives specified
U.S. dollar amounts in exchange for specified peso amounts based on the agreed swap rates. These
U.S. dollar receipts correspond with the expected interest and fixed principal amounts due on the
hedged loan. Effectively, the 10 NDCCS converted 60.0% of hedged loan into a fixed rate peso loan.
Pertinent details of the NDCCS are as follows:
Notional
amount
(in million)
$15.00

Trade
Date
03/26/12

Effective
Date
03/27/12

Maturity
Date
06/17/17

Swap
rate
P43.05

Fixed
rate
4.87%

Variable rate
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
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$10.00
$10.00
$10.00
$10.00
$10.00
$7.50
$7.50
$7.50
$7.50
$7.50
$7.50

04/18/12
05/03/12
06/15/12
07/17/12
10/29/12
05/14/14
05/14/14
06/09/14
06/09/14
07/10/14
07/09/14

06/27/12
06/27/12
06/27/12
09/27/12
12/27/12
06/27/14
06/27/14
06/27/14
06/27/14
9/27/14
9/27/14

06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17
06/17/17

42.60
42.10
42.10
41.25
41.19
43.60
43.57
43.55
43.55
43.29
43.37

4.92%
4.76%
4.73%
4.58%
3.44%
3.80%
3.80%
3.60%
3.60%
3.50%
3.675%

3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps
3-month LIBOR + 175 bps

The maturity date of the six NDCCS coincides with the maturity date of the hedged loan.
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the outstanding aggregate notional amount of
EDC‟s NDCCS amounted to P4,207 million and P2,886 million, respectively. The aggregate fair
value changes on these NDCCS amounting to P18.0 million and P54.9 million gain, respectively,
were recognized by EDC under “Cumulative translation adjustments” account in the unaudited
interim consolidated statements of financial position.
Hedge Effectiveness Results
Since the critical terms of the hedged loan and the NDCCS match, except for one to two days timing
difference on the interest reset dates, the hedges were assessed to be highly effective. As such, the
aggregate fair value changes on these NDCCS amounting to P2,722 million loss as of September 30,
2014 and P244.8 million gain as of December 31, 2013 were recognized under “Cumulative
translation adjustments” account in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of financial
position. No ineffectiveness was recognized in the unaudited interim consolidated statements of
income for the nine months period ended September 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013.
As of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the net movements of changes made to
“Cumulative translation adjustments” account for EDC‟s cash flow hedges are as follows:

Balance at beginning of period
Fair value change taken into equity during the period
Fair value change realized during the period
Foreign exchange gains (loss) realized taken to
unaudited interim consolidated statements of income
Deferred income tax effect on cash flow hedges
Fair value deferred into equity

September 30,
2014
(P51)
(2,724)
2,845

December 31,
2013
(Audited)
(P140)
245
44

(79)
(9)
(15)
(P24)

(190)
(41)
(10)
(P51)

Reconciliation of Net Fair Value Changes on Derivatives
The table below summarizes the mark-to-market gain (loss) on the Group‟s (thru First Gen) derivative
instruments recognized under the “Mark-to-market gain (loss) on derivatives” account in the
unaudited interim consolidated statements of income:
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For the Nine Months Ended September 30
2013
2014
Freestanding derivatives
Forward contracts

=15
P

(P
=4)

10. Share Buyback
As of September 30, 2014, the Parent Company bought back 55,443,070 of its own shares at an
average cost per share of P
=60.33.

11. Events After Financial Reporting Period
On October 8, 2014, FPH was advised that a final award has been rendered (Award) in the
International Chamber of Commerce arbitration proceedings between First PV , FPNC and Nexolon.
The Award orders Nexolon to: (a) pay damages and pre-award interest to FPNC in the amount of
USD24,796,717; and (b) pay First PV PHP2,087,732,514, as payment for the put option price in
consideration for First PV‟s shares in FPNC. Nexolon has until 2 November 2014 to pay these
amounts and if it does not do so by this date, it will be liable for a post-Award interest of 8% p.a.
First PV and FPNC are considering the options to pursue the enforcement of the Award. Based on
reports, it appears that Nexolon is currently subject to corporate rehabilitation proceedings in Korea.
On November 6, 2014, the Board of FPH approved the declaration of cash dividends of P
=1.0 per
common share in favor of First Philippine Holdings Corporation‟s common stockholders of record as
of November 21, 2014, payable on or before December 2, 2014. The Board also approved the
declaration of cash dividends of P
=13.75 per preferred share in in favor of First Philippine Holdings
Corporation‟s preferred stockholders of record as of November 21, 2014, payable on or before
December 02, 2014.

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION & SUBSIDIARIES
AGING OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
September 30, 2014
(Amount in millions)

TOTAL
Trade

Others

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Less than 1 month

More than 1 month More than 3 months
to 3 months
to 6 months

Over 6 months

28,478
-

23,674

1,096

2,924

784

968

651

10

24

283

29,446

24,325

1,106

2,948

1,067

-

-

24,325

1,106

(313)
29,133

(313)
2,948

754

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Amount in millions)

2014
First Gen Corporation and Subsidiaries
Rockwell
First Balfour, Inc.
First Philippine Electric Corporation and Subsidiaries
Parent Company
First Philippine Industrial Corporation
First Philippine Industrial Park, Inc.
First Philippine Properties Corporation
First Philippine Realty Corporation
Securities Transfer Services, Inc.
First Philippine Realty Development Corporation
First Philippine Utilities Corporation
First Philippine Capital Resources, Inc.

16,153
6,956
3,701
1,658
1,454
695
202
44
20
4
3
1
30,891

2013
16,131
4,935
2,652
2,801
1,437
344
243
57
22
4
3
1
28,630

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
LONG-TERM DEBT
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Amount in millions)

2014
Current
First Gen Corporation and Subsidiaries

2013
Long-Term

Current

Long-Term

13,984

109,302

5,526

110,637

2,301

13,511

1,081

15,479

13

1,038

306

1,126

Parent Company

234

14,602

475

8,650

First Balfour, Inc.

-

Rockwell
First Philippine Electric Corporation and Subsidiaries

16,532

2,318
140,771

7,388

605
136,497

FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE REQUIRED
UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED (2011)
I. List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) [which consists of PFRSs, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PASs) and Philippine Interpretations] effective as at September 30, 2014

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characteristics







PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary













First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards







Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate







Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters







Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters







Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters







Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans







Amendments to PFRS 1: Borrowing Costs







Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1
(Revised)

Amendments to PFRS 1: Meaning of Effective PFRS

PFRS 2

Share-based Payment







Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations







Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Sharebased Payment Transactions









Not early
adopted











Not early
adopted



Amendments to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Conditions
PFRS 3
(Revised)

PFRS 4

Not early
adopted

Business Combinations
Amendments to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendments to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint
Arrangements



Not early
adopted



Insurance Contracts







PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable







PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations







PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources







PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets







Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition







Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments







Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets







Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities



Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures
PFRS 8

PFRS 9

PFRS 10

Operating Segments

Not Early
Adopted






Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets



Not Early
Adopted



Financial Instruments



Not Early
Adopted



Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures



Not Early
Adopted



Consolidated Financial Statements
Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

PFRS 11





Joint Arrangements
Amendments to PFRS 11: Investment Entities





Not Early
Adopted







Not Early
Adopted



PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities





PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement





Amendments to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables



Not Early
Adopted



Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception



Not Early
Adopted



Philippine Accounting Standards
PAS 1
(Revised)





Presentation of Financial Statements





Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures





Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation





PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income





Amendments to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements for Comparative Presentation





PAS 2

Inventories







PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows







PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors







PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Date







PAS 11

Construction Contracts







PAS 12

Income Taxes



Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets



Property, Plant and Equipment





Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing
Equipment





PAS 16

Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method –
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depreciation



Not Early
Adopted



PAS 17

Leases





PAS 18

Revenue





PAS 19
(Amended)

Employee Benefits





Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and Disclosures





Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions



Not Early
Adopted



PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates





Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation













PAS 23
(Revised)

Borrowing Costs

PAS 24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

PAS 26

Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27
(Revised)

Separate Financial Statements

PAS 28
(Amended)

Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities





Not Early
Adopted













Not Early
Adopted



Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures





PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014
PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 31
PAS 32

Adopted

Not
Applicable





Interests in Joint Ventures





Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation





Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation





Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues





Amendment to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments





Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities



PAS 33

Earnings per Share



PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting



Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting
and Segment Information for Total Assets and
Liabilities
PAS 36

Not
Adopted

Impairment of Assets
Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Not Early
Adopted




Not Early
Adopted





Not Early
Adopted

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets





PAS 38

Intangible Assets





Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method –
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization
PAS 39



Not Early
Adopted



Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement





Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities





Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions





Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option





Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantee Contracts





Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets





Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition





Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives





Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items





Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting



Not Early
Adopted



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014
PAS 40

Investment Property

Adopted

Not
Adopted



Not
Applicable



Amendment to PAS 40: Investment Property



Agriculture





Philippine Interpretations













PAS 41

Not Early
Adopted



IFRIC 1

Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2

Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease





IFRIC 5

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds





IFRIC 6

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment





IFRIC 7

Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies





IFRIC 8

Scope of PFRS 2





IFRIC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives





Amendments to Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC - 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives





IFRIC 10

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment





IFRIC 11

PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions





IFRIC 12

Service Concession Arrangements





IFRIC 13

Customer Loyalty Programmes





IFRIC 14

The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction





Amendments to Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC- 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement





IFRIC 15

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate



Not Early
Adopted;
Deferred
Effectivity



IFRIC 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation





IFRIC 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners





IFRIC 18

Transfers of Assets from Customers





IFRIC 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments





IFRIC 20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine





IFRIC 21

Levies



Not Early



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of September 30, 2014

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Adopted

SIC-7

Introduction of the Euro





SIC-10

Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Operating Activities





SIC-12

Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities





Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12





SIC-13

Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers





SIC-15

Operating Leases - Incentives





SIC-25

Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
or its Shareholders





SIC-27

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease





SIC-29

Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures





SIC-31

Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services



SIC-32

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs



FIRST PHILIPPINE HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CORPORATE STRUCTURE
September 30, 2014

52.4% V&E
79.0% V

56.2% E

46.0% V&E

47.3% V&E

45.99%

First Philippine Holdings

Power Generation
66.24%

First Gen
Corporation

Property

Manufacturing

86.80%

Rockwell Land Corporation
100%
Rockwell Integrated Property
Services, Inc.

Panay Electric
Company

99.15%

Philippine Electric
Corporation

Other Businesses

100%

100%
Stonewell Property
Development Corporation
100%
Primaries Properties Sales
Specialist Inc.

First Electro Dynamics
Corporation

60.00%

100%

100%

First Philippine Power
Systems

First Balfour, Inc.

100%

First Philec Manufacturing
Technologies Corporation
74.50%

First Philec Solar
Corporation
70.00%

100%

100%
First Philippine
Realty Corporation

100%
First PV Ventures Corporation

98.00%
FPHC Realty and
Development
Corporation

100%
First Philippine
Utilities Corporation

100%
FPH Fund
100%

FPH Ventures

First Philippine Properties Corp.

FPIP Utilities Incorporated

40.52%
First Batangas Hotel Corp.

100%
FPH Capital
Resources Inc.

100%
FGHC International
100%

100%

85.00%

100%

Securities Transfer
Services, Inc.

Cleantech Energy
Holdings PTE, Ltd.

100%

Grand Batangas Resort
Development Incorporated

First Philippine
Industrial Corporation

ThermaPrime Well
Services, Inc.

100%

First Philippine
Industrial Park, Inc.
FPIP Property Developers and
Management Corporation

30.00%

100%
First Philippine
Electric Corporation

100%
Primaries Development
Corporation

75%
Rockwell Leisure Club, Inc.
100%
Rockwell Hotels and Leisure
Management Corp.

Power Distribution

70.00%
First Philec Nexolon
Corporation

100%
First Philec Solar
Solutions

25%
MHE-Demag (P), Inc.

100%
100%
First Philippine FPH Land Ventures Inc.
Development Corp.
88.9%
TerraPrime, Inc.

100%
FWV Biofields
Corp

60%
First Sumiden
Realty, Inc.

